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Anglin, JJ.

E. L Xewcombe, K.C., for appellant.
Daniel McNeill. K.C., for respondent.

Davies. J.:—This was an action under the “Fatal In- 
i'nies Act ” of Nova Scotia, brought by the plaintiff on be- 
'nlf of himself and his wife to recover damages for the death 

0 their son. a voting man who was killed in the defendants 
1,!'np "hile working as one of the defendants’ employees.

J he jury awarded as damages $1,200, and divided it, 
to each father and mother.

J he death of the employee was caused by a stone or rock 
of several tons’ weight falling out of the hanging wall of 
j mine upon the deceased workman, just after work had 
?een resumed in the mine after it had remained unworked 
°r some 18 months.

^ Hie jury found that the negligence of the defendants, 
I mh caused the death of their workman, consisted in “ not 
a'ing the overhanging wall case<l and protected from
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falling; timbering overhead in trench not sufficiently strong 
to hold a fall of stone liable to fall from overhanging wall.” 
That “ the working place was not safe,” and that if the walls 
had been properly examined the stone which fell would have 
been noticed as dangerous ; and lastly, that the unsafe con­
dition of the working was discoverable by a reasonably care­
ful inspection.

I agree with the opinion of Chief Justice Townshend and 
Meagher, J., that on these findings plaintiff was entitled to 
judgment.

Mr. Newcombe, on this appeal, invoked the doctrine of 
common employment as a complete answer by the defendant 
company ; he contended that the mine which had laid un­
worked for some IS months had been properly examined 
before work had been resumed by the superintendent of the 
mine, Kenty, and the managing director ; that the inspection 
was careful and complete, but that whether it was negligent 
or not the company, having employed competent men, were 
not liable, and the evidence did not justify the findings.

As to the findings of the jury, I have no difficulty what­
ever in holding that the evidence was sufficient to sustain 
them.

The inclination of the hanging wall, as stated by Mr. 
Harrison, the managing director, was about 30 degrees. The 
workmen were working immediately below this overhanging 
wall blasting rock, and when the blasting operations were 
begun, and no doubt caused by them, the huge stones fell 
out of the top part of the wall, crushing through an artificial 
roof or covering built across the mine or excavation and 
killed the unfortunate miner, McDougall. The inspection 
made, as described by the superintendent, Kenty, was super­
ficial and fully justified the jury’s finding that it was not a 
reasonably careful one. Kenty says: “The wall was cracked 
along in places, ordinary cracks as you would see in any cut,
I couldn’t see anything to sav it was dangerous. It was 
grassed over to the edge of the cuts; it was impossible to 
see without cutting away the surface.” No cutting or prying 
into the surface was done and no testing of the cracks. Mr. 
Harrison, the managing director, who accompanied Kenty. 
gave similar evidence of the examination which, while it may 
have satisfied them, was not such an examination as the 
circumstances called for.
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I am not able to accept Mr. INTewcombe’s contention with 
Respect to the duty owing to the servant by the master in 
respect of the dangerous condition of the mine when the 
mine was reopened and the workmen were put to work on 
Masting. I have seen no reason to change the opinions I 
i*ave expressed on this subject in Grant v. Acadia Coal Co., 
3- Can. S. C. R. 497 ; McKelvey v. LeRoy Mining Co., Id. 
(h>4, and Canada Woollen Mills v. Traplin, 35 Can. S. 6. R. 
■i'4- In substance they are, that while the master is not 
Necessarily liable for the negligence of the superintendent of 
"s works, he is bound to see that these works are suitable for 

jM* operations he carries on at them : and he cannot, by leav- 
m? their supervision to his superintendent, escape liability, 
°r the duty is one of which he cannot divest himself.

Tu other words, I hold that the right of the master, 
whether incorporated or not, to invoke the doctrine of com- 
1,1011 employment as a release from negligence for which he 
ntherwise would be liable cannot be extended to cases arising 
°iit of neglect of the master’s primary and indefeasible duty 

j Providing, in the first instance, at least fit and proper 
P a°es for the workmen to work in, and a fit and proper sys- 
I‘lri and suitable materials under and with which to work.

1 u°h a duty cannot be got rid of by delegating it to others.
Ç, ^*ie case of Bartonshill Coal Co. v. Reid, 3 Macqueen’s App. 

3ses 300, was cited in support of the general proposition 
lat a master employing competent servants and supplying 

Hot^°' maTer'als to enable them to carry on the work, was 
s ° liable for injuries caused by the negligence of one of his 
"ants to another while they were engaged in their com-

m°n work.

c8s i'1 giving his careful and elaborate opinion in that 
th(>( 8n °P'n*°n which Lord Clmncellor Chelmsford said, in 
f'o blowing case of the same volume, Bartonshill Coal 
(V Vl McGuire, at p. 306, had his entire concurrence, Lord 
l)f, nv'f,,'th was at pains to point out the broad distincion 
()ut 7 Urn exemption of the master from liability arising 
Cans;'1 carelcssnes8 or negligence of one fellow-servant 
in: '"jury to another, and the liability of the master for
the ]I<S *° servant arising out of his failure to discharge 
ph ' ut>' Hie law throws upon him of providing a fit and 
WC |,lace in which his workmen are engaged at work. 
wj|] j " r 1"’ has or has not discharged his duty in this regard.

° ,n «11 cases a question of fact. Mere proof that he
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had employed competent persons to do his work is not 
enough.

Lord Cranworth points out that the two previous deci­
sions of the House of Lords, Paterson v. Wallace, 1 Mac- 
queen, p. 748, and Brydon v. Stewart, 2 Mavqueen, p. 30,
“ turned not on the question whether the employers were 
responsible for injuries occasioned by the carelessness of a 
fellow-workman, but on a principle established by many 
preceding cases, namely, 'that when a master employs his 
servant in a work of danger he is bound to exercise due care 
in order to have his tackle and machinery in a safe and 
proper condition so as to protect the servant against un­
necessary risks.” The question in the former case of Pater­
son v. Wallace, lie said, “ was not as to an injury occasioned 
by the unskilfulness of a fellow-workman, but an injury' 
occasioned by the fall of part of the roof,” and in the other 
case of Brydon v. Stewart, the jury had found that “ the 
death arose from the pit not being in a safe and sufficient 
state,” and Lord Cranworth said, p. 288: “ Your Lordship? 
came to the conclusion that the men had a right to leave the»" 
work if they thought fit, and that their employers were bound 
to take all reasonable measures for the purpose of having 
the shaft in a proper condition so that the men might be 
brought up safely,” and so a verdict was directed to be - 
entered for the pursuer.

Defective places in which to work, defective machinery 
with which to work, and defective systems of carrying 0,1 
work, are none of them, I hold, within the exception graft# 
upon the rule holding an employer liable for the negligel"'e 
of the men in his employ. That exception as defined by 
Lord Cairns in his celebrated dictum in Wilson v. Merry>
L. R. 1 H. L. Sc. 326, does not cover the duties owing by 
employer to the employed in these respects, but does cover « 
risks which the workmen assume when they enter into the 
master’s employment against the wrongful acts or negligpnf 
of their fellow-servants.

As Lord Herschell savs, at p. 362, of Smith v. Ba^1* 
(1891). A. C. p. 362:— a

“ It is quite clear that the contract l>ctween employer 11 ^ 
employed involves on the part of the former the duly 
taking reasonable care to provide proper appliances a1’1 ^ 
maintain them in a proper condition and so to carry 0,1 
operations as not to subject tltose employed by him t0
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necessary risk. Whatever the dangers of the employment 
which the employed undertakes, amongst them is certainly 
not to be numbered the risk of the employer’s negligence 
and the creation or enhancement of danger thereby en­
gendered.”

Mr. Xewcombe relied upon the case of Hall v. Johnson, 
3 H. & C. 589, as supporting his proposition that an under­
looker, whose duty it was to examine the roof and prop it 
up if dangerous, is a fellow-labourer with a workman in the 
niine, and the latter can maintain no action against the 
owner of the mine for injury occasioned by the neglect of 
the underlooker to prop up the roof, if the owner has. not 
personally interfered or had any knowledge of the dangerous 
state of the mine.

It cannot, I think, be questioned, that an “ underlooker,” 
with such duties as those mentioned, would be held to be a 
fellow-workman with the ordinary workmen in the mine, 
tn that case it appeared that the mine had been worked in 
the ordinary course for the previous six years, and the Court 

Exchequer Chamber held that, under these circumstances, 
the workmen “ undertook to run all the ordinary risks of the 
service, including negligence on the part of a fellow-servant, 
an'l that the case before them was within that undertaking.

That case does not involve any question as to the primary 
duty of the master to provide, in the first instance, places in 
a,'d materials with which workmen may safely work, or 
s.Vstenis under which they may so work, or whether with 
'Aspect to cases where such duty is not fulfilled, and an acci- 
d(‘nt happens to a workman in consequence, the master can 
iiiioke the doctrine of common employmçnt and escape lia- 
dity by shewing merely that a fellow-workman’s negligence 

^as the cause of his duty being unfulfilled. My holding is 
lat in such eases he cannot, and that he is bound to shew 

!Iat reasonable and proper skill and diligence were not want- 
°n his part or on the part of those to whom he delegated 

e Performance of his duty in those regards.
In view of the disuse of the mine for a period of 18 

11,11 lis, I deem the position on the resumption of «oik, as 
'garde the mine owners’ duties to their employees, to be 
le R»me as if they were then for the first time placing their 

!ï"n "t work in tiie mine. Their duty to their workmen in 
,, situation was to provide them with a reasonably safe 

,w* 'n Which to work. When that duty has been delegated,
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any negligence of an employee to whom it has been confided 
must be imputed to the employer whether an individual or 
a body corporate.

Under these circumstances and holdings, without discus­
sing the other branch of the case as to whether the general 
manager and director of the company was or was not a 
fellow-workman with the deceased, or was the alter ego of 
the company for whose negligence they would be liable, I 
think the appeal should be dismissed with costs.

Idington, J. :—The whole point of this case, as appel­
lant’s counsel put the matter, without abandoning other and 
minor things, is whether the doctrine of common employment 
is applicable or not, and whether the jury should have been 
better directed in that regard than they were.

I do not think appellant can now complain of non-direc­
tion, after its counsel at the trial prudently and deliberately 
refrained from taking objection to the charge or submitting 
a proper question for adoption by the learned trial Judge or 
otherwise insisting on the point in question being finally and 
definitely brought to his attention with a view to having the 
jury pass upon it.

Moreover, on the facts that bear on the exact point raised, 
there is no dispute.

There is most conflicting evidence as to whether or not 
what the jury has found to have been negligence was so or 
not. But there is no dispute that the condition of things 
pronounced negligent and dangerous was seen and passed 
upon by three officers of the company, of whom one was 
manager and director, and another general mine superintend­
ent, for the express purpose of either determining or report­
ing to the Imrd of directors (it does not appear which) 
that it could decide as to reopening the mining operate*"5 
which had ceased for 18 months.

The condition of the place in and about which the work­
men had to work, the nature of that work and the risk- 
created thereby and to be suffered must he taken, I think. *'• 
adopted bv the company on their reopening of the min»' 
as a place and things nil known to it to lie just what it was-" 
and what was that ? Was it not a dangerous place where' 
the men were to work, and was not the employment 8 
dangerous character?
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Xo proper system was adopted to protect the company’s 
workmen, in life or limb, against these dangers. Xo ade­
quate protection was supplied by the company and put at the 
service of those it placed in charge of the work.

Xor was the obvious need either to case the wall or remove 
the overhanging or other material liable to fall provided for 
by the company.

Xor, if that might have made a difference, was there as­
signed to any one (competent or not) the duty of supplying 
the necessary protection.

This is not the case of a work opened by a competent 
' superintendent, appointed for that purpose, and its work con­
tinuously operated and developed by him within his author­
ity, both as to the creation of its dangerous qualities and in­
sufficient protection, but is distinct therefrom as if something 
new.

Whatever doubt or difficulty might exist in a case such 
as I have just stated. T fail to see how any can exist here if 
"'e have regard to the very cases cited by appellant without 
going further.

I think the appeal should be dismissed with costs.

Girouard, Duff and Anglin, JJ., agreed with Davies, J.

Appeal dismissed with costs.

SOVA SCOTIA.

Fv, l Court. December 22nd. 1909.

ST. MARY’S SOCIETY v. ALBEE Et Al.

■Axvxxiiiphi and Tare*—Exemption—Benevolent Society— 
Hall in Building Bented for Publie Purposes—Basis of 
1 ablation for Assessment—Lease—Construction.

p appeal from the judgment of Lonoley. J., reported 6 
8'- R- •'>82. in favour of defendants in an action to recover 

amount paid by plaintiff for taxes in connection with a 
' r,l°n of plaintiff’s building occupied by defendants.

' ■ * • O’Connor, in support of appeal.
0. Mollah, K.C., contra.
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Townshbnd, C..T.—The defendants, on the 14th Septem­
ber, 1907, leased from the plaintiff society a portion of their 
building on Barrington street for a term of 3 years, from the 
16th day of December, 1907, at a yearly rental of $2,000, to 
be paid in monthly instalments. The building, at that time, 
under the city charter, in so far as it was used for charitable 
and such like purposes, was exempt from taxation. The en­
tire lower story, or ground floor, had been from time to time 
let for public entertainments other than the purposes of the 
society, and was at the date of the lease to defendants as­
sessed at $1,000 only. In 1908, after the lease to defendants, 
the assessment was increased to $10,000. Thi§ action is to re­
cover from the defendants the amount of taxes caused by the 
increased valuation. The plaintiffs had hitherto paid the 
taxes on the lower valuation, but now claim, under the terms 
of the lease, that defendants are liable and bound to pay the 
increase, and this on the ground that it was by reason of the 
manner in which defendants used or occupied the lower story 
that the increased assessment was imposed.

This question must be decided on the true construction 
to be put upon the language of the lease. The words of that 
document, so far as necessary to quote here, are as follows :

“ And also shall and will well and truly pay or cause to be 
paid any and all license fees, taxes or other rates or assess­
ments which may be payable to the city of Halifax, or charge­
able against said premises by reason of the manner in which 
the same are used or occupied by the lessees hereafter, or 
which are chargeable or levied against any property belonging 
to the said lessees (the said lessor however hereby agreeing to 
continue to pay as heretofore all the regular and ordinary 
taxes, water rates and assessments levied upon or with respect 
to said premises, and the personal property belonging to the 
lessor.”

In my opinion, there can be no doubt the defendants are 
not liable for the increased taxes. It was contended there was 
a latent ambiguity in the terms of this covenant which justi­
fied the admission of parol evidence to clear up such doubt, 
and some was in fact received. I do not think there is any 
ambiguity in the language used and parol evidence should 
not have been received.

I he lessors bind themselves “ to pay as heretofore all the 
regular and ordinary taxes . . . and assessments levied
upon or with respect to said premises." Ac. These words make
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it clear enough that the lessors were bound to pay all “ regu­
lar” and “ordinary” taxes and assessments, and it cannot 
be questioned that this increased valuation for assessment 
purposes comes under the class of “ regular ” and “ ordin­
ary.” The lessors so interpreted this language when they 
paid the taxes on the $1,000 valuation, and they bound 
themselves to pay such class of taxes “ as heretofore.” Now, 
unless we can find words in the lease which qualify the above, 
the conclusion is plain that the lessor must pay this increased 
taxation. The plaintiff relies on the words “or chargeable 

, against the said premises by reason of the manner in which 
the same are used or occupied by the lessees hereafter.” It 
is manifest that any such taxes, rates or assessments payable 
to the city “ by reason of the use or occupation ” of the lessees 
are not and could not be “ regular” or “ ordinary taxes,” but 
extraordinary ones due to the manner of use or occupation. 
Then the rule of ejusdem generis applies here with lull force.

1 be kind or class of taxes which defendants bind themselves 
t° pay are “ all license fees, taxes, or other rates or assess­
ments chargeable by reason of the manner in which they are 
’’Red or occupied. Regular or ordinary taxes cannot be placed 
tinder such a category and are moreover expressly excluded.

I have said nothing about the fact that the increased 
taxation was owing to the increased revenue plaintiff society 
received, because, in my view, the reasons for the increase 
bave no bearing on the question. The city assessors, except 
in so far as the building was exempt, were bound to assess 
it at the cash value which is the basis of the regular and 
0''dinary taxation which under this lease, as I have already 
Sa'd, the plaintiff was bound to pay.

t he appeal should be dismissed with costs.

QBah am, E.J. :—I concur.
Dbysdalk. J. I concur with the Chief Justice.

Laurence, J. :__The parties to this action entered into
8 'ease dated September 14th, 1907, of the “ main hall ” of 

*e building or premises owned by plaintiffs. Nos. ’(>, ami 
Harrington Street, in the City of Halifax, with certain 

appurtenances belonging to said hall mentioned in the said 
lease.

^ be lease contained the following provision.
“The lessees will well and truly pay or cause to be paid 

n-v «ml all license fees, taxes or other rates or assessments
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which may be payable to the city of Halifax, or chargeable 
against the said premises by reason of the manner in which 
the same are used or occupied by the lessees hereafter, or 
which are chargeable or levied against any property belong­
ing to the said lessees (the said lessor, however, hereby agree­
ing to continue to pay as heretofore all the regular and ordin­
ary taxes, water rates and assessments levied upon or with 
respect to said premises, and the personal property thereon 
belonging to the lessor).”

By statute the buildings or premises of the plaintiff com­
pany are exempt from taxation by the city of Halifax so long 
as they are exclusively used for the purposes of the plaintiff 
company as specified in their charter.

As a matter of fact, however, the assessors of the city only 
assessed that portion of these premises used from time to 
time for purposes other than the prescribed objects of the 
company, and on a basis or amount proportionate to the in­
come derived from this temporary use of such portion. From 
1896 down to the making of this lease, the company had 
been leasing this hall from time to time for purposes foreign 
to the objects of the company, and in view of that an annual 
assessment of $1,000 was imposed by the city officials. This 
was not the legal method of taxation under the statute grant­
ing the exemption to this company, but it was the method 
adopted and concurred in for many years by the authorities 
concerned, and probably served just purposes under the cir­
cumstances. It was upon this amount, $1,000, the plaintiff 
company was assessed at the time the lease was made.

Under these circumstances, and upon this state of facts- 
the parties sat down to prepare this lease, the above recited 
clause of which is presented for interpretation in this action- 
And I am of opinion that the proper construction of the 
clause in question is that the lessees should pay the “ tax® 
or other rates or assessments ” payable to the city of Halil8*' 
or chargeable against the said premises by reason of the man* 
ner in which the same are used or occupied by the lessee* 
hereafter, the lessor, however, agreeing to continue to pay 
heretofore all the regular and ordinary taxes (that is, on t"e 
assessment of $1,000 previously paid by the said lessor)- 
This, it seems to me. is the only construction which will g1*0 
effect to the word “ hereafter” in the one ease and the wot" •
“ continue to p»v as heretofore “ in the other rase, and 11
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construction which gives effect to the obvious intention of the 
parties.

On the one hand, the lessees covenant to pay all license 
fees, taxes or other rates or assessments which hereafter may 
be payable to the city of Halifax. On the other, the lessors 
agree to continue to pay as heretofore all regular and ordin­
ary taxes, water rates and assesments levied upon said pre­
mises. The obligation of the lessees is to pay license fees and 
all rates, taxes or assessments against the said hall (called in 
this lease “ the premises ”), hereafter chargeable by reason 
of the manner in which the same are used by the lessees, the 
lessor, however, agreeing to continue to pay as heretofore the 
assessments, &c., imposed on said premises. The provision 
might have been expressed more clearly, but to hold that the 
lessor should pay all the rates, taxes and assessments would 
entirely disregard and annul the clear provision that the 
lessess shall pay the rates and assessments hereafter imposed 
on the leased premises.

I think the appeal should he allowed.

Meagher, J. :—Concurred.

Appeal dismissed.

NOVA SCOTIA.

County Court for District No. 3.

November 10th, 1909. 

NORTH v. MARTIN.

•1iiininl Contm/ioux ipixnises Act—Solr of Cow Infected with 
Tuberculosis—Action for Price—Ignorance of Vendor— 
defense.

^ 0. Parsons, for plaintiff. »
A. H. Davidson, for defendant.
Che facts are set forth in the judgment.

. R.v Order in Council of the 23rd day of December. 1901. in 
I*rt"e of the provisions of sec. 29 of the Animal Contagious 
hseascs Act. 1903. n regulation respecting tuberculosis -was 

1 "'l'1 and established ns follows:—
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1. The disease of tuberculosis is hereby exempted from 
the operations of sections 3, 4, 5, G and 7 of the Animal Con­
tagious Diseases Act, 1903.

Felton, Co. C.J. Appeal by plaintiff from a magis­
trate's judgment in favour of defendant, heard before me at 
Bridgetown, without witnesses on either side, upon a very 
bald statement of admitted facts. The facts are as follows : 
Defendant, with full opportunity for inspection, bought a 
cow from plaintiff for $30, paid cash, $15, agreed to pay the 
balance in a month, took the cow awaj-, but had not paid 
the balance. At the time of sale the cow had tuberculosis, 
which is an infectious or contagious disease under sec. 2 of 
the Animal Contagious Diseases Act, ch. 75 B. S. C., but, 
at the time of sale, plaintiff did not know that the animal 
had the disease. I assumed that defendant was in like ignor­
ance, though the statement of facts is silent on that point. 
About four weeks after the purchase, defendant killed the 
cow without giving notice, under sec. 3 of the Act. and with­
out examination by a veterinary. The day before the killing, 
defendant told plaintiff that the cow was sick. (It does not 
appear, from the statement, that he told the plaintiff that 
she had tuberculosis, or that the defendant then knew that 
such was the case), and asked plaintiff if he was willing to 
do something about it, but plaintiff refused to do anything, 
and said he would collect the balance of the price. Defend­
ant did not offer to return the cow to plaintiff. Under the 
statement of facts, the contract of sale was admittedly an 
honest one, and made without concealment, and in complete 
ignorance that the animal was diseased. Having no evi­
dence of the circumstances, outside of the statement. 1 am, 
of course, confined to the admitted facts.

Mr. A. L. Davidson, for the-defendant, rests his defence 
upon see. 38 of the Animal Contagious Diseases Act, above 
mentioned, which provides that “ Every person who sells or 
disposes of, or puts off, or offers or exposes for sale, or at­
tempts to dispose of or put off. any animal infected with or 
labouring under any infectious disease, or the meat, skm- 
hide, horns, hoofs or other parts of an animal infected with 
or labouring under any infectious or contagious disease at 
the time of its death, whether such person is the owner o 
the animal, or of such meat, skin, hide, horns, lioofs or other 
parts of such an animal, or not, shall, for every such effet10*’ 
incur a penalty not exceeding two hundred dollars.”
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He contends that this section is absolute in its terms, 
that any person who sells, and so forth, is liable to the pen­
alty, although he may not know of the existence of the 
disease in the animal ; that, in this case, the plaintiff, not­
withstanding his want of knowledge, was guilty of an offence 
created by the section, and is liable to the penalty, and the 
sale, being in violation of the Act, the plaintiff cannot re­
cover the unpaid balance.

Mr. W. G. Parsons, for plaintiff, contends that the plain­
tiff, having innocently and in good faith sold the cow with­
out any knowledge or belief that she had the disease, was not 
liable for the penalty, and could not be found guilty of the 
offence, and that there is, therefore, no violation of law 
which would render the sale void or prevent plaintiff from 
recovering the balance. Tie relies upon the doctrine or 
maxim of mens rea.

If I were trying the plaintiff for the offence, I would, 
probably, be inclined to hold in view of what I think, from 
examination of the numerous and somewhat conflicting de­
cisions cited by counsel, is the weight of authority, that this 
maxim would applv" in such case, and that the want of 
knowledge would be a defence to a prosecution lor the pen 
city. The absence of the word “ knowing or “ knowingly, 
m the section, having, as held by Day, J., in Sherras v. De- 
liutzen (1895), 1 Q. B. 918, 72' L. T. R. 839, the effect only 
°f shifting the burden of proof as to knowledge or want of 
knowledge, and I might have to adopt the reasoning of 
b right, J., in that case, that, “ in the present case, if know­
ledge were unnecessary, no farmer would he safe from the 
Imposition of a penalty, no matter how innocent he might be 
°f any intention of wrong.”

In this case, however. T do not think it necessary lor me 
1° decide whether plaintiff could be made liable to the pen- 
■Ity under sec. 38. To my mind, the question here is not 
whether the mens rea doctrine , es or whether plaintiff, 
0,1 the facts, could or could not be convicted or punished 
for the offence, but whether the sale is prohibited by the 
■Act. ]f jj jn (j,) prohibited, I do not think plaintiff can re- 
<over. even though he might not be, from want of knowledge. 
iahle to the penalty. In this case, the sale of an animal 
',,ving tulierculosis is. in mv opinion, prohibited by sec. 38.

1* is a well «••dahliahed principle that (adopting the words 
°* I'nllock on Contracts), the imposition of a penalty by

41
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the legislature on any specific act or omission is prima facie 
equivalent to an express prohibition. Thus, for example, 
by the Court of Exchequer—“ that where the contract which 
the plaintiff seeks to enforce, be'it express or implied, is ex­
pressly or by implication forbidden by the common or sta­
tute law, no Court will lend its assistance to give it effect. 
It is equally clear that a contract is void if prohibited by a 
statute, though the statute inflicts a penalty only, because 
such a penalty implies a prohibition.” Cope v. Rowlands, 
2 M. & W. 149, 157.

Where a penalty is imposed by an Act of Parliament 
upon any transaction, the transaction will be illegal, though 
it is not expressly prohibited by the Act. In re Cork & 
Youghal Railway Co., L. R. 4 Ch. App. 748.

“ It is also settled that the imposition of a penalty for 
the contravention of a statute avoids a contract against the 
statute.” Brown v. Moore, 32 S. C. R. 93, 97. See, also, 
Maxwell on Statutes, 3rd ed., p. 555.

But it is not necessary to multiply the citation of au­
thorities which are numerous on this point. The sale of 
the cow was illegal because prohibited by statute, and plain­
tiff cannot recover the balance of the purchase money. There 
will be judgment for the defendant and dismissal of the 
appeal, but, under all the circumstances of the case, with­
out costs.

I may say, if I may express an opinion apart from the 
legal question as to what was right and fair and equitable 
between these parties, both of whom were contracting in 
good faith and without any knowledge as to the existence 
of the disease in the animal, that, in my view, the loss 
should be divided about as it has been, and the plaintiff has 
received for the cow all he ought to expect, and probably 
as much as he would have realized if he had not sold the 
cow to the defendant.
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NOVA SCOTIA.

County Court for District No. 3.

November 10th, 1909.

CHIPMAN v. DUELING:

Collection Act—Absence of Finding of Fraud—Appeal by 
Defendant from Order for Payment by Instalments—No 
Dross Appeal by Plaintiff—Right of Plaintiff on Appeal 
to Set up Fraud—Right of Wife to Employ Husband— 

Liability to Support Family before Paying Creditors.

Miller, for plaintiff.
Milner, for defendant.
Plaintiff recovered a judgment for upwards of seven 

■undred dollars against defendant and examined him under 
e provisions of the Collection Act, and the Commissioner 

"'ade an order that the defendant pay the plaintiff fifteen 
th 8rS n'onthly- uP°n the judgment, and he verbally ordered 

e defendant to assign to the plaintiff his real and per- 
s°Dal estate in trust for the payment of the debt. Although 
prfiUested by the defendant to commit the plaintiff for 

a, > he declined to do so. Defendant appealed from the 
0rder for payment.

before the judgment was recovered the defendant had 
a e an assignment to the official assignee of the county, 

118 farm and personal property had been sold at public 
def 10,1 k' fhe assignee, and purchased bv the wife of the 
be y an*> and the defendant had since given his wife the 

a t of his services without reward.
^‘ r- Milner, for the defendant, contended that the plain- 
in "as obliged to shew that defendant was in receipt of 
wife "6 over and above what was sufficient to support his 
pj ■ and children, before an order could be made to pay the 
G„ and he relied on Hucklev v. Wells, 33 N. X. 518;
y age - J - ■ x-

343.

-7 «un ne lenvu un uucmcj i
v- Dauchv, 34 N. Y 293, and Abbey v. Deyo, 44 N.
O

hand w * f°r the plaintiff, contended that the hua 
*ù,Plied"'S ' *° receive wages, from his wife, under nr
^'thin .lt,reeinent, and was, therefore, in receipt of inc 

" n,eaning of the statute.

r an 
ncome
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Pei.ton, Co. C.J. :—Appeal by defendant from Commis­
sioner’s order under The Collection Act requiring defendant 
to pay to plaintiff fifteen dollars monthly on the judgment 
in this action.

After hearing evidence of plaintiff and defendant and 
other witnesses on the appeal and carefully reading the evi­
dence taken by the Commissioner on the examination before 
him, and after argument of counsel, 1 have now to give my 
decision on the appeal.

I have nothing before me but the Commissioner’s order 
to indicate what his conclusions were from the evidence, but 
as the order is for merely monthly payments, I take it for 
granted that his only finding against the defendant apart 
from his verbal‘order for assignment was that the defendant 
had sufficient means or income to pay the judgment by in­
stalments. This verbal order made under sub-section 2 of 
section 28 of the Act would shew that he had determined not 
to cônimit the defendant under any of the provisions of sec­
tion 27.

I must assume that so far as section 27 applies the find­
ings were in favour of defendant, and it would seem, strictly 
speaking, where there is no appeal by plaintiff, as if I were 
confined to a consideration of the grounds set out in the 
notice of appeal, viz., the question as to the possession of 
means or income by defendant. Mr. Miller was allowed to 
contend on the hearing of the appeal that defendant was 
liable to commitment under sub-section b or section 27 f°r 
having contracted the debt without any reasonable expecta­
tion of paying the same.

I find, and in fact Mr. Miller in his argument admitted, 
that the debt was not fraudulently contracted (sub-section 
(a), the credit was not obtained under false pretences (h)> 
there were not any other fraudulent circumstances in con­
nection with the contracting of the debt (d), the debtor did 
not make any fraudulent disposition of his property (e).

As to the contracting of the debt without having at the 
time any reasonable expectation of paying same, I cannot 
find anything in the evidence that would in my opinion war- 
rant me in sustaining plaintiff’s contention or in comtnitt,D? 
the defendant on that ground. It is true the defendant ha* 
difficulty in financing his affairs, but when he contracted th® 
debt he had a large credit at the bank and was floating 
business along as usual, and it was only when the bank wi 1
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drew or curtailed his credit that he began to see the end of 
his business career, and after the action of the bank in that 
way he purchased nothing from the plaintiff. I cannot, 
therefore, say from the evidence that when he contracted the 
debt he had no reasonable expectation of paying it, and I 
cannot order his committal on that ground.

The question remaining to be considered, and the one 
upon which the appeal has been taken, is whether the de­
fendant is possessed of means or income sufficient to enable 
him to pay the debt by instalments.

The question of course must be decided by the evidence, 
and it is incumbent upon the plaintiff to show that the de­
fendant has such means or income. This, I think, the plain­
tiff has failed to do.

The uncontradicted evidence of defendant and his wife is 
that he has nothing, he assigned all his property real and 
Personal to the official assignee under the Assignments Act, 
and has acquired no property and has been in receipt of no 
mcome since the assignment.

His wife upon her own account and on her own credit, 
"ith funds of her own ami with the help of indorsers, has 
managed to get most of the property into her possession, and 
is continuing the business upon a much smaller scale than 
formerly, with the advice and assistance, as is reasonable, ol 
the defendant. But the'defendant, according to the evidence, 
's not in the receipt of any wages from his wife; there is no­
thing to shew that the wife is making more than enough to 
yilpport the family, and it certainly would be the defendant's 
f'r*t duty to assist in maintaining his family.

The authorities on this j>oint cited by Mr. Milner, on be- 
lialf of the defendant, if authority were needed for so plain
II proposition, are conclusive as to the obligation of the hus- 
hand to support his wife and family in a reasonable manner
III preference to payment of debts.

1 should judge that with the excessively heavy incuin- 
l,rances on the real estate, and the liability incurred by the 
**te in the purchase of the personal property, and the smaller 
IUsiness now carried on. husband and wife together will hare 

Ul1 they can do to maintain their family and pay interest, to
nothing of reducing the incumbrances and other liabilities 

°n account of the personal property.

Vot- ' ll K.l, *. Sf). 11 'J(i
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I cannot see any prospective income out of which the de­
fendant could possibly pay any instalments on the judgment. 
He is a comparatively old man broken down in health, and 
without any property, and he is not at all likely to accomplish 
much in the future.

I need not refer at greater length to the evidence. I have 
gone over it all, and considered it very carefully, and while I 
would be disposed to uphold the order of the commissioner 
if it were at all possible to do so, I cannot come to the con­
clusion from the facts before me that the defendant has suf­
ficient or any means or income to justify an order for pay­
ment by instalments. Such an order if made would be of no 
avail to the plaintiff, there is nothing for him to get in satis­
faction of it.

I am obliged therefore to set aside and reverse the order 
appealed from, but I order that the defendant do forthwith 
make and execute to plaintiff an assignment under section 28. 
If counsel cannot agree upon the form. I will settle it upon 
application.

I cannot now see that such assignment will be of any 
benefit to plaintiff, but it is possible that he may discover 
property not disclosed by the evidence acquired by defendant 
since the assignment to the official assignee, and in that case 
it would be of use.

I do not allow any costs of appeal.

NOVA SCOTIA.

The Full Court. December 11th, 1909.

THE TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL SECTION No. 8. RICH­
MOND v. LANDRY Et Al.

School Trustee»—Action to Restrain Conveyance of Land 
and to Recover Property—Appointment of New Trustee 
—Adding Ratepayer a» Plaintiff—Amendment—Conduct 
of Action where Trustees Decline to Proceed—Attorney- 
General as Plaintiff—Order Therefor—Trustees Joined 
as Defendants—Costs—Practice.

Appeal from the judgment of McGillivrat. C.C.J*» 
ordering that Thomas D. Morrison, a ratepayer of the 
tion, be added as a plaintiff in the action.
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W. B. A. Kitchie, K.C., in support of appeal.
J. A. Wall, contra.

Graham, E.J. :—There is a dispute between the ratepay­
ers in this school section, and this action was brought by the 
trustees corporation to recover some property, and 
there is a restraining order granted to prevent the property 
from being conveyed away. But at a recent school meeting 
the defendant, Andrew Landry, was appointed a trustee in 
the place of one retiring. There is another proceeding pend- 
ln" before us as to the legality of that appointment, and now 
a majority of the trustees, backed up by a majority of the 
ratepayers, apparently do not wish to proceed with the action, 
and have given instructions to have it discontinued.

One Thomas D. Morrison, a resident ratepayer, applied to 
a Master of this Court to be made a plaintiff, and there was 
an order made to that effect. Something was said by the 
Master about giving him the conduct of the action, but that 
%as not done, and could not be done.

There is an appeal from the Master’s order.
, It is admitted that the order cannot be supported. But 
*t is contended that we ought still further to amend by add- 
lnS Morrison as a plaintiff, suing on behalf of himself and 
other ratepayers. That seems reasonable, but then the trus­
tees corporation would have to be made defendants, and it 
a 80 appears to be a case in which it would be advisable to 
make the Attorney-General a plaintiff.

1 his seems to be a great extension of the power of amend- 
eQt, and I would have some hesitation about granting the 

application, leaving the dissenting ratepayers to bring an 
m ependent action properly framed. But any independent 

61 lon would have to deal with this action, which the parties 
J*13' at any moment discontinue or compromise, and the 
Posent defendants will have two actions pending against 
of°H ‘f’ 88 the res,llt of thp other proceeding, the majority 

'p trustees corporation is turned the other way.
•Tactically, there will be no difference in the matter of

amendment should be granted, and the Attorney- 
0nn®ra| (if his consent is obtained) may be made a plaintiff 

le Nation of Morrison, and the trustees corporation will 
stri,..i. aR a p]ajn(iff and joined as defendants, and 

file a new statement of claim appropriate to the
I -‘uvk ou

......
resistances
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Leave to amend within sixty days from the order therefor.
The present defendant will have the costs of the present 

appeal, and of the application before the Master against Mor­
rison. But the costs of the amendment and of the action will 
be disposed of by the Judge or Court on the final adjudica­
tion.

Bussell and Drysdale, JJ., concurred.

Meagher, J. :—I say nothing in this case.

NOVA SCOTIA.

Supreme Court at Sydney. December 4tii, 1909.

McKinnon v. macpherson.

Contract—Agreement for Sale of Mineral Rights—Rescis­
sion—Undue Influence—Trespass.

R. F. Phalen, for plaintiff.
D. A. Cameron and N. McMillan, for defendant.

Russell, J. :—The plaintiff and his wife executed »n 
agreement in July. 1899, giving the defendant certain min­
eral rights in connection with the property which was owne 
by the plaintiff and his two sisters, but which the defendant 
supposed was the property of the plaintiff. Defendant say* 
that the consideration for the agreement was that he worn 
deed to plaintiff a piece of land adjoining plaintiffs 11,11 
known as the C’arlrerry lot. Plaintiff says that the arrange 
ment as to the Carberrv lot (which he had been renting 
the defendant for a dollar a year) was that the plaint' 
should clear the bushes off the defendant's land adjoin'11® 
plaintiff's in consideration of receiving a deed of the 
berry lot. The claim of the plaintiff is to have the agreem6® 
rescinded, because of endue influence on the part of 
defendant in procuring it. The plaintiffs evidence, a? 
what took place when the agreement was signed, is all.'V1 
consistent, with the exception that Margaret McK'nn* ’
the sister of the plaintiff, older than he, who was exatnioined
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bene esse, being old and sick and unable to attend Court, ad 
mitted in cross-examination that the defendant and plaintiff 
came into the house together on the day the agreement was 
signed. Her statement on the direct examination was that 
she was the only one in when Father MacPherson arrived : 
“ All the rest were out at the potato field. They all came 

a minute after Father MacPherson.” This is inconsistent 
with the plaintiff’s account of the matter, who says that he 
unharnessed his horse and put him in the barn before coming 
ln the house and that the defendant was then already in 
the house. I do not consider this slight discrepancy of any 
&Teat importance. It is quite possible that the old lady in 
cross-examination was led to use words that did not correctly 
represent her thoughts, and it is not very material, if she was 
mistaken, as to this detail. All the parties present, except 
the defendant, agree that there was no explanation made of 
'he document, although it must be mentioned that one of 
the sisters admits that something was said about minerals 
0r limestone or something of that kind. The plaintiff is 
seventy years old and can neither read nor write. His wife 
ajgned as well as the plaintiff by a mark, and it is beyond ques- 
*°n> J think, that the document was never explained to her. 

fhink the evidence preponderates that no explanation of 
le document was ever made at the house when it was signed. 
ut the defendant claims that the arrangement with refer- 

Dce to it was made on a previous occasion, when the pLain- 
Was at his house paying the rent on the Carberry lot.

Ie question of fact seems to be reduced to an enquiry as to 
mt took place between the plaintiff and the defendant on 

118 occasion. They are directly consistent and both were 
j r' pbiusible and apparently credible and “ convincing wit- 

Sses, to use the overworked expression of the literary 
hriUcs- 1 should have no reason for disbelieving either of 
s,,p Parties, if he were not contradicted by the other. The 

lcilt parts of the case seem to be as consistent with the 
q.j 1 n,!ant as with the plaintiff's account of the matter. 
fo'e fact of it is a fact that the plaintiff ceased paying rent 
n|<r tllc barberry lot, after the lease, or whatever the agree- 
th 'f1 '8’ wa8 vxccuted, is consistent with the plaintiff's story 
o.\( I cl**r the bushes off the defendant s land in
tba/'111^0 ^or Carlierry lot, and with the defendant s story 
the ^'e * ai"berry lot was to be conveyed in consideration of

aKroement.
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The agreement in this ease could not be satisfactorily 
explained to the plaintiff, because it is perfectly indefinite. 
No term of years is mentioned for which the lease, if it is a 
lease, is to continue, and the amount of the royalty to be 
paid to the plaintiff is left blank. It does not seem necessary 
to determine what effect these particulars would have upon 
the construction of the document, because I think that 
under the authorities, the burden was upon the defendant, 
arising out of the relations between them to show that the 
plaintiff clearly understood what he was doing. The docu­
ment creates, I should think, at least a license to the defend­
ant to go upon the plaintiff's lands and take minerals there- 
fiom, and the defendant, not having established affirmatively 
that it was fully understood by the plaintiff and executed by 
him without his being affected in anv way by the influence, 
assumes as possible from the relations of the parties. I think 
the agreement must be cancelled.

There is a counterclaim for trespass which has all the 
appearance of having been trumped up to meet the plain­
tiff's claim. It depends entirely upon the establishment of 
the boundary line between the parties, and the evidence is 
too vague and uncertain to enable me to determine that the 
plaintiff overstepped the established and long enjoyed line 
between the properties.

The counterclaim will therefore be dismissed.

NEW BRUNSWICK..

Barker. C.J. December 31st, 1909-

SUPREME COURT IN EQUITY.

TAYLOR v. McLEOD, et al., TRUSTEES.

Will—('onstrxution—Fund for Maintenance and Education* 
—Time for Payment—Costs.

<T. Roy Campbell, for the plaintiff.
C. H. Ferguson, for the defendants.

Barker. C.J. :—In form this bill is one for the admin'*1 
tration of the trusts of the will of the late Bvron fi. Taylor* 
but in substance and fact it is for the payment of a lcg»< v
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which the plaintiff, his son, claims from the defendants, who 
are the trustees under his will.

The testator died on the first of October, 1895, leaving 
him surviving a widow and one child—the plaintiff—who was 
then about seven years old. The will contains the following 
provision : “And I hereby will and bequeath all my estate, 
real and personal (of which I may die possessed) to my said 
executors and trustees for the following purposes—that they 
shall in the first place convert all property into cash within 
one year from the date of my death, and after the payment of 
my just debts shall invest the remainder in safe interest pay­
ing investments and out of such investments I direct that the 
sum of one thousand pounds (£1,000) or the equivalent 
thereof be set apart and used by my said executors and trus­
tees for the purpose of educating and giving a profession 
to my son Gordon Winslow Taylor, providing he has not al­
ready been educated and received a profession. The will 
then contained directions as to the disposal of the residue 
°f the estate, and provides that the plaintiff's share of it 
shall be paid over to him on his attaining the age of twenty- 
five years, the income of the share being in the meantime 
available for his support and maintenance. This £1,000 
fund was set aside and it is in the defendants hands invested 
as follows :—$5,000 in City of Saint John debentures, $500 
*n Kings County debentures and $45.66 on special deposit in 
tfie Bank of New Brunswick. This is the unexpended bal­
ance of the original fund and accumulations after deducting 
$1,500 allowed the plaintiff by the defendants to enable him 

travel in Europe in 1907.
The plaintiff reached the age of twenty-one years on the 

2nd September, 1909. and he has filed this bill by which 
is prayed that this estate lie administered under the dir- 

ection of this Court. The plaintiff claims that he is entitled 
fu have paid over to him, now that he is of age, the £1,000 
fund, and to secure that is the sole object of this bill. I here 
18 no dispute as to the facts, and the only point upon which 

intend making any observation is the question of cost>. 
Section twelve of the bill is as follows “ That since the 
s«jd plaintiff has attained the age of twenty-one years as 
"foresaid he has applied to the said defendants, George Otty, 
D,x°n Ottv and James A. Belyea. to have the balance of the 
SHld fund and interest, or the securities representing the 
,arn<h transferred to him the said plaintiff, but the said
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two last mentioned defendants informed the said plaintiff 
that the defendants were unwilling and would not do so with­
out the sanction of this Honourable Court.” The defendants 
admit this statement to be true. I think the plaintiff is 
entitled to the payment of this fund. It is clearly a legacy 
for his benefit and in the absence of any provision postponing 
its payment to a later date, as in the case with the remainder 
of the estate, would be payable to the plaintiff on his com­
ing of age, when he could give a valid discharge to the trus­
tees. The authorities cited by Mr. Campbell, and there are 
many others which might be cited,’sustain the plaintiff’s 
claim. There must therefore be a decree for the payment 
of the fund to the plaintiff.

As to the costs : To make them payable out of the fund, 
as would be the usual course, is simply so far as the plain­
tiff’s costs are concerned, to order his costs to be paid 
out of his own money. I asked the plaintiff’s counsel if he 
claimed that the defendants should pay the costs of this 
suit and he distinctly said that he did not. There is there­
fore no one to pay them but himself, and there seems 
no order necessary as lie is liable on his own retainer. An 
order might be made for the trustees to pay them out of the 
fund and pay the balance over to the plaintiff. There is 
no object to be gained by that, more especially as a security 
would have to be sold for the purpose, and that no one wanted 
done. As to the defendants’ costs, in what position do they 
stand ? 1 asked their counsel to point out why the defend­
ants refused to pay, and in what wav doubt» as to the plain­
tiff's right to the money had arisen. He frankly told me 
that in his opinion the money ought to be paid, and the 
two defendants Otty and Bolyea, both of whom are lawyers, 
were apparently of the same opinion. These proceedings 
therefore have lieen rendered necessary, not by any doubt the 
trustees had or could even suggest as to the plaintiffs right, 
but because they refused to pay without the sanction ot this 
Court. I am disposed to think that there are authorities 
which in such a case would render them personally liable f°r 
the costs of tlie proceedings, but that is not asked here sod 
so the only question is whether they should have costs. * 
have come to the conclusion that they should not.

In Knight v. Martin, 1 Russ. & Myl. 70, a trustee who re­
fused to pay a legacy without the direction of the Court 
in a case which admitted of no doubt was refused his costs,
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and only escaped an order to pay costs because he might 
bave been ignorant an did not act from any improper motive. 
Campbell v. Home, 1 Y. & C. 664, and cases cited in the 
note at page 670 are to the same effect.

The same rule has been applied to trustees paying the 
fund into Court under the Trustees Act to escape some fan­
cied liability. They have been obliged to pay the costs of 
getting the money out of Court. In re Elliot’s Trusts, L. R. 
la Eq. 198, Malins, V.C., says,—“ By the present proceedings 
tbe fund will be greatly diminished, and I am sorry to find 
’hat the trustees were not taught a better lesson when, in 
deciding the case in July last, regarding the sister’s share, 
which they also paid into Court, I ordered them to pay the 
costs. I decided that they were not then bound to make 
inquiries about the encumbrances on the fund. I think these 
proceedings were perfectly unjustifiable, and although it 
n clear that the Court will incline towards the payment of 
*be costs of trustees when they act in a bona fide way, still, 
°n the other hand, it is most important that trustees should 
j'°t incur unnecessary expenses for the mere purpose of re- 
'eving themselves of all liability, and particularly so when 

’here is no reasonable doubt in their way. ... I can 
”d no excuse for their having paid the money into Court 

except a restless anxiety to get rid of it, and 1 cannot relieve 
’hem from the payment of costs. See also In re eater’s 

ensts, 25 Bea. 361; In re Knight’s Trusts, 27 Bea. 45.
1 he same rule has been adopted in the case of trustees 

’’“necessarily seeking advice or opinions of the Court on 
l”cstions of management.

^ hi le the Court will afford trustees every assistaace and 
Pr°teetion when they are acting bona fide and are in doubt 
. “ reasonable grounds as to the proper course to pursue, 

ls obvious that, if the trust funds are to be utilized in 
t “feedings and applications to meet cases where the trustees 
jl eniseives cannot even suggest a doubt as to the course 

"V should take or when there is no substantial doubt as 
*hat should be done, trustees would be of little use; they 

th° p 1)6 little more than clerks or ministerial officers of 
P Pa'd out of the trust funds. 

f»in(] Cre Wil1 1x5 tt decree for the trustees to pay over the 
‘ a» invested with accumulations of interest.
There will be no order as to costs.
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No order as to administering the estate in this Court. 
There seems very little to be done and the Probate Court can 
pass the accounts. Under the circumstances there is no 
reason for taking the administration over.

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

Court of Chancery. December 23rd, 1909.

HUTCHINSON v. HUTCHINSON.

Will—Devise to One of Testator’s Sons to be Selected by
Widow—Death of Widow without having made Selection
—Joint Tenancy or Tenancy in Common—Partition Re­
fused—Adm i nisi ration Ordered.

A. C. Saunders, for complainant.
Neil McQuarrie, K.C., C. II. Smallwood and B. W. Tan- 

ton, for defendants.

Fitzgerald, V.C. :—Patterson Hutchinson by his will 
gave, devised and bequeathed “ all my real and personal es­
tate of every kind and description and wheresoever situated 
unto one of my sons his lawful heirs and assigns absolutely 
forever, hereby appointing my wife Barbara Ann Hutchinson 
to choose which one of these two is the more worthy to 
have it.”

There are other provisions in the will providing for his 
mother, his wife, and the education of all his children.

The testator left him surviving two sons and one daugh­
ter. After his death one of his sons died unmarried, and 
subsequently his wife died without making any appointment 
under the power given her in the will.

This bill is now filed by the surviving son and daughter 
asking for partition and sale of the real estate consisting 
of 85 acres of freehold lands, and administration of both real 
and personal estate.

The intitial question is, has the daughter any interest >n 
either the real or personal estate ?

To decide this it is necessary in the first place to i'oD 
strue this will.

There can he little doubt, I think, that the testator bj 
intended to devise all his property to one of his two sons to 
the exclusion of the other of them, and of his daughter, Ie"x



HUTCHINSON o. HUTCHINSON. 455

ing it to his wife to select which of such sons and “ his 
lawful heirs and assigns absolutely ” should have the pro­
perty.

I will now consider the doctrine established in Brown v. 
Higgs, 4 Ves. 708, 5 Ves. 495, 8 Ves. 561, and the later cases 
hereafter referred to.

I have no doubt that under the authority of that case 
and of Burrow v. Philcox, 5 My. & Cr. 72, Wilson v. Duguid, 
24 Ch. Div. 244, and in Be Weeks Settlement (1897), 1 
Ch. 289—there appearing in this will a general intention 
in favour of a class, and a particular intention in favour of an 
individual of a class—that the particular intention failing, 
by reason of the mother not having made the selection re­
quired of her, the Court will carry into effect the general 
intention in favour of the class.

And further that, as there is no time limited for the execu­
tion of the power by the wife, and that it was (as Chitty, J., 
in Wilson v. Duguid expresses it), “ not more or less her duty 
to exercise the power just before her death, than it was to 
exercise it at any other time, the Court will now execute the 
power in favour of the class as existing at the date of the 
testator’s death: Lambert v. Thwaites, L. R. 2 Eq. 151, 
and not at the time of his wife's death ; and, as by this will 
an absolute gift is made to a class, with only a power of par­
ticular appointment to one of that class, the property in this 
' ase therefore vested in both sons, on the death of the father, 
?nd the power not being exercised it remained so: Lambert v.
Thwaites.

The more difficult question remains, however, namely, 
"Tether it so vested in them as tenants in common, or as 
joint tenants?

-j-^‘ °Hev v. Bird. 3 Yea. 629. and Withy v. Mangles. 4 Beav. 
se(t| flS lo**°wed anil approved by the more recent cases, 
pH ' the law, that a devise to two or more persons, sim- 

' r> realty, or a bequest of chattels, whether it be made 
urn 'm 18 'n^'viduals, or as a class, will confer a joint ten- 
aiiio, 688 there are words of severance—as “equally 
il T'. or an intention of a contrary desire on the part of 
,he testator.

As I have construed this will, the intention of the testator 
,Was n»t to divide his property equally among his two sons, 
"" givi it h ne of th<m absolutely, h i* • viit <■
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only; the testator leaving the selection of that one to the 
donee of the power coupled with a trust.

None of the authorities I have been able to find, including 
those cited by me, have had in review a will in such terms 
as this one. All indicate in some way a division amongst 
children in such manner, at such times, and in such propor­
tions, or as most deserving, &c., as the donee of the power 
should think best, as for example in Ee White’s Trusts, Johns. 
Ch. 656, Lambert v. Thwaites, Wilson v. Duguid (where the 
Court expressly finds that this was a trust for all the children 
in equal shares), Brown v. Higgs, Chesterton v. Sutherland 
9 Ves. 445.

In Re Phene’s Trusts, L. R. 5 Eq. 346, Lord Romilly 
draws attention to the reason for holding that such bequests 
should go to the devisees as tenants in common. He says: 
“Then the testator says to his executors : ‘ You may give it 
amongst that class (of children) as you see fit.' That does 
not create a joint tenancy, because his meaning clearly is 
that the executors are to divide the fund, and the Court 
standing in their place must also divide it. that is, give it to 
the objects of the testator’s bounty as tenants in common.”

Following that reasoning, there being no intention on 
the part of the testator here, to make any division, a joint 
tenancy would be created ; for, though both sons are the class 
designated, the idea of division among them is expressly 
negatived.

Under such authority, and construing the will as I do, I 
am compelled to hold that the two sons took a joint tenancy 
on their father’s decease, and that now the survivor, Cyril 
Stanley Hutchinson, is alone entitled under the devise in his 
father’s will.

I have fixed the time for -ascertaining the class, at the 
death of the testator. There is, however, a clause in the will 
—not brought to my notice—which reads as follows, speaking 
of the testator’s mother: “ While she lives with my wife her*' 
she must be consulted with resjiect to the management of 
the affairs, but if she goes somewhere else to live, mv "iff 
Barabara Anne Hutchinson will have full control till her 
death, when the son she chooses will have charge.”

If this means that the time for ascertaining the class i*1 
on the death of the wife—which is open to much doubt 
does not alter the estate of the survivor, for his brother prc’ 
deceasing his mother, he. Cyril 8. Hutchinson, was the
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only one of his class entitled on his mother’s death ; and 
whether she made an appointment or not, he took the estate 
solely and absolutely.

There can therefore be no partition, and the bill must 
fail in that respect.

The bill however asks for administration. That will be 
granted, in view of the necessity for having the question of 
the interests of the two infant children settled by a Court 
of competent jurisdiction, and of the title to the personalty 
being disputed by the defendant Hugh Patterson.

There will be a declaration that the said Cyril Stanley 
Hutchinson is solely entitled under the devise in his father’s 
will to all the testator’s “ real and personal estate of every 
kind and description, and wherever situated, subject to other 
the bequests and conditions therein contained, and a further 
declaration that the said testator Patterson Huchinson died 
seised and possessed of one undivided half interest in the 
stock, cattle, farming implements, crop and other personal 
property, and the increase thereof, as the same were transfer- 
red and assigned to him by deed of assignment of the 18th 
April, 1895, and made between the said testator and one 
Matilda Hutchinson now deceased. And that Hugh Hutch­
inson, one of the defendants herein, has no title or interest 
h' such one undivided half share as the same existed on the 
decease of the said Patterson Hutchinson.

Ordered, that the estate of Patterson Hutchinson de­
based be brought into this Court and administered, and that 
administration be made accordingly.

Further ordered, that the executors file their affidavit 
01 accounts in form required by general order of 1st Decern- 
1)cr> 1908, and that the usual order of reference be made 

Master Hunt to ascertain what debts there are agaimt 
tlle estate of the late Patterson Hutchinson.

ZOVA SCOTIA.
SUPREME COURT.

December 15th, 1909.

A.XUUb V. ,M UO'HW > !..
Ija»d~-TUIf>—Crown Grant - Adverse Possession-- "

— Proof—Rents and profits—Improvements.
„ T|iis is an appeal from the judgment of Longley 
^Ported ante p. 83.
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458 the eastern law reporter.

W. F. O’Connor and A. D. Gunn, for appellant.
D. A. Hearn, K.C., for respondent.

Graham, E.J. :—This is an action to recover land, with 
a claim for mesne profits, and it is nothing else. The plain­
tiff claims the land as devisee under the will of George J. 
Bradley, who died at Montreal, on the 38th day of April, 
1907.

I agree that the will is sufficiently proved by a copy under 
s. 27 of the Evidence Act, R. S. (1900), c. 163.

There is oral evidence showing the death and that the 
will was made during his last illness, and tending to show 
that it must have been the last will. It purports to have 
been signed by the testator in the presence of two notaries, 
witnesses, present at the same time, and in all respects is a 
sufficient compliance with our Statute of Wills, and suffi­
cient to pass real estate in this province. The judgment 
to recover the land cannot be impeached.

The learned Judge, in respect to the claim for mesne 
profits, has allowed the same for nine years, covering a period 
in the testator’s lifetime. Against this, he has allowed to the 
defendant a large claim for improvements under the Ameri­
can doctrine.

I think the plaintiff, who is a devisee, cannot recover f°r 
mesne profits, which accrued to the testator, but is only en­
titled to recover those which accrued during the period 
of his own title.

In Sedgewick on Damages, s. 912, it is stated : “ Heirs 
or devisees recover (mesne profits) only from the time of 
the ancestor or testators’ death.”

Besides, I think there is some testimony, more or less 
satisfactory, tending to show that the defendant was a tenant 
at will of the testator. Of course this would be put an end 
to on his death. There was a demand of possession in this 
case on the part of the plaintiff.

This would also dispose of the question of improvement- 
But in any view, the law as to that doctrine is thus stated in 
16 Eng. & Am. Encyc. 101, as follows :—

“ But he, the defendant, cannot he allowed to recoup 
against the mesne profits for improvements made before th' 
plaintiffs title accrued.”

The case of Ocean v. Ilford (1905), 2 K. B. 493. 
a starting point for the mesne profits, i.e., it shows that aftef
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entry or recovery the right of possession relates back to the 
time at which the legal right to entry accrued.

And the case of South Post v. Gandy (1897), 2 Q. B. 66, 
shows that mesne profits may be allowed after action brought 
and up to the time when the plaintiff obtains possession.

Roughly, there would be accruing mesne profits for over 
two years, and at the rate fixed by the Judge, they would 
amount to $240. Against this, the defendant Musgrave has 
expended during the same period, in repairs and for taxes, 
about $120.

The balance, $120, is a larger sum than the Judge at the 
trial allowed to the plaintiff, viz., $68. The plaintiff has 
not taken a cross-appeal, consequently the judgment will re­
main at the sum of $68.

The appeal will be dismissed with costs.

Rüssell, J. :—The principal question of importance on 
this appeal relates to the admission of evidence to establish 
the will of George J. Bradley. The Evidence Act, R. S., vol. 
^ (page 682), s. 27, provides that:—

“A copy of a notarial act or instrument in writing made in 
Quebec before a notary public, filed, enrolled or enregistered 
hy such notary and certified by a notary or prothonotarv to be 
a true copy of the original, thereby certified to be in his pos­
session as such notary or prothonotarv, shall be received in 
e'idenee in anv Court in place of the original, and shall have 
the same force and effect as the original would have if pr°- 
dueed and proved.”

l^o proof of the handwriting or official position of the per- 
s°n certifying is requisite, and we must therefore take it that 
a true copy of whatever it was that was executed before the 
not,,ries public in Montreal, has been produced in compliance 
''■th section 27. In order to have any effect upon the trans- 
|°r »>f land in Nova Scotia it must be shown to have been 
xp(uted in compliance with the formalities required by thi 
aw of this Province. If this section had been intendedmerely ce. .. ............. -

v i ° 88V thflt the original document should be received
the ncc quantum valent, it might well have closed withm evidence J

‘■vc <(iiiiinuni valent, it migut ---------
Phrase directing that it should be received in evidencep]jj^ *nov rtr-oilMI —

be 11 '*,e original. In that ease the question might still 
ctroo«ü„rrn w^e(ber, although admissible in evidence and 
on the i°r f,ome purposes, it could be effectual to operate 

" ' hiini- in this Province When theeleuae goes
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further and enacts that the document so received shall have 
the same force and effect as the original would have if pro­
duced and proved, I think it must have been intended to say 
that the party producing the document should be in the 
same position as if he had produced the original and proved 
with respect to it all the facts certified with respect to it 
by the notary public. It is to have the same force and effect 
as the original would have if produced and proved. Proved 
how? Proved to have been executed in the manner in which 
it pu ports to have been executed. The language might have 
been more explicit, but I think it means nothing if it does 
not mean this. The notary public has certified, in fact 
two notaries public have certified, that the will was sub­
scribed by the testator in their presence, and that they signed 
it in his presence and in presence of each other. They do 
not describe themselves as witnesses by the use of that term, 
but they were witnesses and attest the facts that make them 
witnesses, and shew the due execution of the testament. I 
see no reason, therefore, why the instrument could not pr°" 
perly lie received. If it be said that it cannot, because the 
section does not apply to wills, there being other clauses in 
the Evidence Act which provide for the proof of wills, there 
are two answers; first, that section 22 of the Evidence Act 
only applies where there has been probate of the will, which 
1 admit is not a conclusive answer, because it happens that 
there can be probate of some kinds of wills in Quebec. That, 
however, is an accident, and, in fact, we have no proof in the 
law of Quebec, as to which I am not sufficiently well informed- 
to be able to say whether there could or could not be probate 
of a will executed in the form in which this will was executed- 
In fact, I should rather infer from the statement of Osier- 
J., in He Maclaren, 22 O. A. R. 111. that this particular kin* 
of will has not been presented for probate, but was to remain 
with the notary public. But what the procedure in Quebec 
may be in this respect is of no great consequence, because the 
best answer to the argument that you must cut out 
from the operation of section 27, because wills are special 
provided for by section 22, is the equally cogent content1"1' 
that you must cut Quebec out of section 22 liccause t,u> 
province is specially provided for in section 27. I do n" 
consider either contention valid. I think that section 
applies to Quebec and would have to be invoked where th,lp_ 
was a will that was or could lie admitted to probate and
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not executed before a notary, and that section 22 applies to 
wills executed before a notary whether they could or could 
not have been admitted to probate.

The decision of Osler, J., in Re Mac-Farlane, 22 0. A. R. 
18, is distinctly in favour of the views here presented. He 
held that ancillary letters of administration could not be 
granted on mere production of the certificate, such as that 
produced in this case, but he conceded that tne certificate 
made proof of the will, its contents and execution. That 
was all that the party producing it desired to prove by means 
of the certificate in the present case. The death of the 
testator was proved by other evidence as it must necessarily 
have been, and the will having been proved must,.of course, 
he taken as the last will and testament, none other having 
been produced.

On the other branch of the case, I find my views expressed 
'b the opinion of my learned brother Graham.

Townshend, C.J. (dissenting) :—This is an action for the 
recovery of lands and trespass for mesne profits in which 
judgment was given for plaintiff and from that decision de­
fendants appeal.

The defendants make two contentions : (1) that the 
alleged will of George J. Bradley, a necessary link in plain- 
tifFs title, was improperly received in evidence, and (2) that 
111 aene profits were improperly allowed against him.

The will had not been admitted to probate in this pro­
duce. It purports to have been made in the Province of 
Quebec before two notaries, and was duly certified by one of 
euch notaries as a true copy of the original will on record in 
,'s °ffice. No proof was offered or given except the produc- 
'°B of the copy as certified. The learned trial Judge ad­

mitted this document, as he states, under the provisions of 
cb. 163, sec. 27, R. S. N. S., which reads as follows:—

A copy of a notarial act or instrument in writing made
Quebec before a notarv public, filed, enrolled, or enre- 

jmtered by such notary, and certified by a notary or pro- 
j ’notary to be a true copy of the original thereof, certified 
i be in his possession as such notary or prothonotnn, shall 

received in evidence in any Court in the place of the origi- 
^ shall have the same force and effect as the original 

°nld have if produced and proved.
Vit Kl,* MO. 11-X7
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It will be seen that if wills are included, or intended to be 
included in this section, the mere certified copy as produced 
fulfilled all its requirements.

It is contended for the defence that the section has no 
application to wills, which are fully dealt with under sec. 22, 
sub-sec. (1) and (2). That section provides that:—

“ The probate of a will or a copy thereof certified under 
the hand of the registrar of probate, or found to be a true 
copy of the original will, when such will has been recorded, 
shall be received as evidence of the original will, but the 
Court may, upon due cause shewn upon affidavit, order the 
original will to be produced in evidence, or may direct such 
other proof of the original will as under the circumstances 
appears necessary or reasonable for testing the authenticity 
of the alleged original will, and its unaltered condition, and 
the correctness of the prepared copy.”

Sub-sec. (2). “ This section shall apply to wills and the
probate and copies of wills proved elsewhere than in this 
province, provided that the original wills have been deposited 
and the probate and copies granted in Courts having juris­
diction over the proof of wills and administration of intestate 
estates, or the custody of wills.”

If this will was properly received in evidence, then it 
comes to this, that, in respect to the Province of Quebec, a 
different rule prevails regarding the transfer of property M 
this province by will from that which prevails as to any other 
province or country. In this province, and so in regard to 
any other province or country, under the sections applicable 
to wills, a copy of the original will can only be received 
evidence when it has been shewn to be a true copy, duly re' 
corded in a Court having jurisdiction over the proof of will8 
and administration of intestate estates. If plaintiff's con­
tention is right a copy of a will which has never been proved 
in any Court, provided it is certified by a notary public w 
Quebec, is to be accepted as the true will of the testator- 
Thus, a transfer of land could be made without any record 
in the province, and without any of the proofs required b) 
our statute for authenticating the due execution of wills, 
cannot believe that such was the intention of the statut1 • 
especially in view of the provision of sec. 22, which, >n 
press terms, is made applicable to all wills proved elsewhere 
than in this province. I am rather disposed to think t"* 
see. 27 is applicable to all instruments other than wills- b*"
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cause of the express provision for wills made and probated 
elsewhere.

This view of the section in question seems to be in accord 
with the general law of the subject as laid down in Dicey on 
Conflict of Laws, at p. 520, where he says:—

“ The formalities required for the devise of immovables, 
whether realty or personalty, the restrictions, if any, in such 
devise or bequest, and generally the validity of a will of lands, 
are wholly governed by the ordinary testamentary law of 
England (lex situs).” And again :—

The general principle of the common law is that the 
a" of the place where such immovable property is situate 
exclusively governs in respect to the rights of the parties, the 
niode of transfer, and the solemnities which should accom- 
Pany them. . . . All questions concerning the property in 
•mmovables, including the forms of conveying them, are de- 
C1ded by the lex situs.” Does the language of sec. 27 dis- 
. ace the above statements of the common law as heretofore 

this province? If not, and I think it does not have that 
ç, <-ct, then in this case there was no evidence before the 

0Urt that the original of this will was properly executed 
with all the solemnities and formalities required by our 
aute of wills. It has never been admitted to probate or 

0® ^e sanction of any Court having jurisdiction in matters 
in ^r°*)ate afid administration of estates, and I think only 

8ucli cases could a copy of the oifginal be received.
^ tt is not necessary in establishing title to lands that pro- 
ahv'i H w*^ should be first granted. The original will may 
den8' ' *’e Proved on the trial in the usual way and be evi- 
ori °e’ *>ut no copy of such wills could be received unless the 
aPDl'nn* ^la<* been admitted to probate. Under sec. 27, if 
to 'cable to wills, a certified copy of a will not admitted 
am* r0l"lte’ or authenticated in any Court, must be received, 
Pr0(|"'^ have the same force and effect as the original if 
a a,1d proved. Moreover, in sec. 22, which enables
evirfi! ' °f a wil1 duly admitted to probate to be received in 
0rj 'j'1' ®’ ^cre is a clause providing for the production of the 
test j, WiI! w|iere the Court is satisfied it is necessary to 
thi# S( '*hdity and character, but if wills arc admitted under 
adniitt I*0” thvre is no such power or safeguard. A will 
if tlu. •Under this section would transfer property which. 

e or|ginal were inspecte»! by a Court or jury, would be
X
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rejected for many reasons which would not appear in a copy, 
such as erasures, interlineations, forgeries, want of mental 
capacity and other imperfections. Again, if this section 
applies to wills, it does not appear that the will as executed 
before a notary must necessarily be executed as our statute 
requires. It might be witnessed by one person only, yet, if 
certified by a notary to be so registered in his office, this 
would be enough to give it validity here. Moreover, we have 
no evidence here what the law of Quebec is on the subject 
of wills, and therefore do not know whether, even in that pro­
vince, a will so certified could be acted on without proof in 
some Court having jurisdiction over the subject.

The only case of any authority with respect to such a 
clause is In re Maclaren, 22 O. A. R. 18, where Osler, J.A-, 
in confirming the decision of the Surrogate Judge, refusing 
to admit a will executed as this one, under a similar clause 
in the Ontario Statutes, appears to treat it as applicable to 
wills, although that question was not raised before the Court- 
It may be that in Ontario there is no section corresponding 
to sec. 22 in our Act, which would, in some measure, account 
for his language.

However that may be, I am of opinion that such a funda­
mental and dangerous change from the common law should 
not be recognized unless the statute supposed to make such ® 
change is clear and definite beyond controversy. In veiw 0 
the extraordinary results which will follow if wills execute 
and proved as here should be received as evidence of title 
think we should long hesitate before giving effect to a clall?® 
interpolated at such a recent date into our statute with0 
due and full consideration of its effect. I may be in err°rj 
and if so it is high time, in my view, that the attention ^ 
the Legislature should be directed to it, so as to preve 
further mischief.

Holding this opinion, I come to the conclusion that 
copy of this will was improperly admitted in evidence, 
want of due proof of its execution in accordance with 
statute and because the original has not been probated in ^ 
Court having jurisdiction in matter of wills and admin18 
tions of estates. The appeal should be allowed.

Appeal dismissed with costs.
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NOVA SCOTIA.

Full Court. December 22nd, 1909.

REX v. BUCHANAN.

School — Board of Commissioners — Trustees — Legality 
of Appointment — Quo Warranto — Public Instruction 
Act, sec. 87 — Construction — Election — Irregularity.

Proceedings in the nature of a quo warranto to determine 
file validity of the election of school trustees. Appeal from 
fhe judgment of Laurence, J., dismissing the information.

W. F. O’Connor, in support of appeal.
A. A. Mackay, K.C., contra.

Craham, J. :—This is an information in the nature of a 
Tio warranto to determine the legality of the appointment 
n of three school trustees made by the board of school 

Oor»missioners for the district of Victoria and North Inver­
ness, owing to the alleged failure of the school section No. 
•i. Baddeck Forks, to make the election at the school meeting 
held for the purpose in that section for that year.

By the Public Instruction Act, section 37, it is provide! 
as follows : “ When the annual meeting fails to elect three 
trustees or to fill the annual vacancy occurring in the trustee- 
®tiip, or vacancies from other causes then existing, the district 
"nrd may, upon the written requisition of five ratepayer» 

111 the section, accompanied by a certificate from the inspector
schools that to the best of his knowledge and beliel. 

founded on an inspection of the minutes of the school mcot- 
m8—or if necessary upon personal enquiry, that the alleged 
'«cancy or vacancies actually exist, appoint a trustee or 
trustees who shall hold office in all respects as if elected at 

e annual school meeting.” , .
, 1 agree with the learned Judge who tried the cause tha

annual school meeting was held at the time tixei re
there had been no meeting, there is another form of l>r»- 

aer1ure to be adopted in order to have the necessary trustees 
appointed, but as I liave said, tthere was a meeting of the'■■“«u, mit as I have said, mere was » lucd-i»*
..cpayers and poll taxpayers held; that it did not a 

p,"h any very definite obj< t d<x not affect that fact.
accom-
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There had just been a consolidation of parts of school 
sections, and number 5, Baddeck Forks, comprised the former 
Forks section and a part of Mill Brook section. Three new 
trustees were required and unfortunately two almost evenly 
divided parties of ratepayers met at the place appointed on 
the 25th of June. 1006, to hold the annual school meeting- 
The Rev. P. K. McRae, a member of the district board, hav­
ing with him a list of the ratepayers certified by a number 
of members of the board, nominated one A. B. Watson for 
chairman of the meeting, and M. E. McKay, the sheriff, 
nominated one Anderson for chairman. They divided the 
house but had to divide it again as poll taxpayers had been 
counted. Mr. McRae and Mr. McKay each relying on a 
majority in favour of his nominee, declared him elected. 
Anderson had a de facto majority, 17 votes in all—the other 
claimed a legal majority, because two men of the other party 
were not ratepayers in that section, but the vote of one of 
that party was also challenged because he was not a ratepayer, 
that it was his father of the same name who was the rate­
payer. But Watson had sixteen de facto votes. Each pro­
ceeded' to take the chair. Anderson was first in the chair, 
and Watson took a chair behind him. The learned trial 
Judge has found as follows, and I see no reason for disturb­
ing that finding: “An hour or thereabouts followed in con­
tention. wrangling and dispute, chiefly as to which chairman 
had been elected by a majority of qualified votes—no business 
apparently could be transacted, and someone moved the ad­
journment of the meeting, which, being seconded, was Pu* 
and declared by chairman Watson, whereupon a majority, °r 
certainly half of the ratepayers, withdrew. Then those re­
maining appointed a secretary and proceeded to elect trus 
tees and transact other business.’’

The first question to be considered is the validity of f*,e 
votes of the two persons who voted for Anderson, who >*■ 1 
claimed were not ratepayers in that section. I refer to - 
Donald and Morrison.

Now, I think that this question is largely one of f4; j 
and I see no reason for disturbing the finding of the 
Judge. In the description contained in the minutes of 
school Iniard of commissioners when section No. ■r> 
created, there is this description of the part of Mill Br° ^ 
which is to he taken for the new Forks section : “ And ' 
Mill Brook section he divided as follows, namely, all no
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of the brook to bei joined to centre section No. 8, and those 
south of the brook, viz., Alexander Macaulay and Charles 
McFhee, to be joined to Forks section.” Unfortunately the 
brook winds and the places of residence of Morrison and Mc­
Donald are. it is contended, by one side, northerly from some 
parts of the brook and by the other side southerly from some 
parts of the brook. Taking the points of the compass as 
stated by the witnesses who tried the locality with a compass, 
I should think they were northerly from the brook. Take 
Daniel Morrison’s own testimony. He was a witness for the 
defendant, and to the counsel for the defendant he testified : 
—Is it possible that your house is north of that brook as the 
brook runs by it?” Answer. “It might.” And on cross- 
examination : Q. “How far is this ‘ X ’ bridge from this 
‘ 0 ’ one? A. About half a mile ; and from ‘ X to ‘ M 
about two miles, that’s bv the road.”

Q. Doesn’t the brook take quite a sweep from the bridge 
“X” to “0 ”? Well, a little.

Q. It takes the sweep as shewn there on the plan ? A. h es. 
Q. If this brook was running in a straight line, on what 

s,de of the brook would you say McPhee and Macaulay would 
be ■ On the southern side, wouldn’t they l>e ? A. es. 1 sup­
pose they would. I would be on the north-west side if the 
brook took g straight line.

Q. What part of the brook are you speaking of ? A. The 
shortest from my place; that is from the brook to the bridge 

D ’ to my place.
Q- Would you say that your house was pretty nearly west 

from the bridge “ O ” according to that sketch ■ A. By 
h'oking at it it is.

Q. If you go below that and take the brook between the 
bridge * \ » and the bridge “ 0 ” wouldn’t you get McPhee
811.1 Macaulav to the south-west of the brook and \ou to the 
J>orth-east? The brook between “X” and “O”? A. Yes,
'at s if it xvas run clear out. M

() If they continued the brook between the bridge “ X.
8.1.1 “ 0 ” in a straight line. McPhee and Macaulay would 
’■'""c to the south-west of that line, and Morrison. McLeod,
8.1.1 McDonald would be to the north-east? A. Yes.’

/■ here is more difficulty about whether McPhee and Mac-
8.1 a.v are south or southerly from the brook. But there is 
a!,°ther part, of the deseiption which includes them and im- 
,,|,p,11.v excludes Morrison and McDonald. I have read the
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evidence over in this case, and I have come to the conclusion 
that the first part of this description, the general description, 
depending upon courses by compass, is an uncertain one, 
and therefore that the special description of men by name, 
which is certain, ought to he taken. I refer to Griffiths v. 
Pens on, 9 Jurist, N". S. 385.

The Courts afe every day rejecting courses and distances 
in favour of monuments because courses and distances are 
so liable to he erroneous.

The certain description which is added here includes 
Macaulay and McPhee as all of the ratepayers of the Mill 
Brook section who are to be included in the new section 
No. 5.

The next question relates to Charles McPhee, who voted 
for the chairman Watson. By section 23 of the Education 
Act, “ the ratepayers, male and female, of the section present 
at any school meeting, shall elect from their own number 
or otherwise, a chairman to preside over the meeting, and a 
secretary to record its poceedings.” By the definitions, un­
less the context otherwise requires, “ ratepayer ” means “ a 
person assessed and rated upon the municipal rate roll- 
The father of Charles McPhee. now deceased, bore the same 
name. Being an old man, he, nine years before, transferred 
part of his farm and all the stock upon it, to his son. There­
after the son paid the rates and also the school taxes, and 
the father paid none. The entry on the assessment is in the 
name of “ Charles McPhee.” The real estate is assessed and 
the personal property is assessed, and for nine years that 
description at least as to the personal property, is inapp'10' 
able as applied to the father. The father could not have 
claimed the benefit of that assessment. The son could. All 
of the acts, such as voting for nine years at the election 1er 
members, had been done by the son on the strength of thn> 
assessment. The dealings of the assessor and the tax c°^' 
lector were with the son, not with the father. I thin»? 
when the assessor states that it was the old man McPhee 
that lie had in mind when he was making the assessroen • 
which is the only testimony of the identity of the father 
the name on the assessment roll, that this is not legal ev* 
dence, apart from the fact that thé assessor was one of 1 e 

other party in this unfoninate dispute, and the conditm 
of his mind in the past is a very difficult thing for the othe 
party to contradict. I also am of opinion that testimon)
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as to the admissions of the son, unless he was first con­
fronted with them and a foundation laid for this kind of 
evidence, was not admissible and was properly ruled out by 
the trial Judge. The majority of legal votes having been 
given in favour of the appointment of Matson to the chair, 
I think it must he held that he was the legal chairman and 
competent to put and declare carried the motion to adjourn.

I am of opinion that the election of trustees made by 
those who remained was not a legal one. The appointment 
as one of the trustees, of Daniel Morrison, who was not a 
ratepayer in that section (if I am correct in the former part 
of this opinion), was illegal.

I think that there was a failure to appoint trustees within 
the meaning of the section cited, and a case for the appoint­
ment of trustees by the district board.

The appointment by the board, which under the pro­
visions of the Act already cited it is its duty to make, ought 
to receive due weight and respect when it comes before a 
Court. This is the resolution of the district board :—

" A requisition from ratepayers of the Forks section was 
presented to the board, praying that the board appoint three 
trustees from that section, alleging that no trustees had been 
elected at the meeting convened on the 25th of June. 1 he 
inspector gave a statement to the effect that from the in­
formation received by him by minutes of meeting he was not 
satisfied that trustees had l>een elected. A. J. McDonald, 
barrister, made statement before the board representing the 
views of the Hon. the Provincial Secretary in reference to 
aPpointing trustees, and suggesting an investigation by the 
superintendent of education. The Board, by unanimous 
v°te, appointed the following trustees for Forks section viz., 
Duncan Buchanan. Alexander McKenzie and John Bice, but

that no official act In* performed for one or two 
«, to give time for the enquiry by the superintendent of 

'•ration as suggested by the premier.” 
boar /" <T * ^e inspector acts as the secretary of the
jn lr< ! hut another person may l)e appointed in his absence, 
ee fj* 0a8c he has been dead for some time. There is no 
L 1 11 a*e forthcoming of the failure to appoint, and the 
Wrj(/‘l (t°unsel contends that there was no certificate in 
in r',ng ^rotn the inspector alleging that there was a vacancy 
quot0^l,Vf *° t-nistees, under Section .17 of the Act, already 

* * ho resolution of the board, already quoted, shews
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that there was a statement but does not say that it was in 
writing. In my opinion that provision of the Act prescribes 
that a mere certificate of the inspector to the best of his 
knowledge and belief will be sufficient proof of the vacancy 
to enable the board to make the appointment. But it is not 
intended to make that the exclusive mode of ascertaining 
whether the meeting has failed to elect the trustees. In my 
opinion the provision is an enabling one and directory as to 
the certificate. The statute is not a conferring of “juris­
diction,” but a mere power is conferred upon a body in no 
sense a judicial tribunal, nor is the act of appointment a 
judicial act. There is no necessity at common law to have a 
judicial investigation, and a decision that a contingency which 
creates a vacancy in an office has happened before the power 
to fill the vacancy may be exercised. And I think that the 
statement of the inspector, personally present when he mav 
be subjected to questions, quite as useful as a certificate. 
There is nothing in the Criminal Code or anywhere else, as 
fai as I know, which would import more1 value to the certifi­
cate than to the oral statement.

A decision that the absence of a certificate and conse­
quent illegality of the appointments of the hoard would not 
give the office to anyone else. Another election or appoint­
ment of trustees would have to be made. It is difficult to 
say which, and in what mode it would be made. And now it 
is over three years since the last appointment was made, and 
all three have been retired by lapse of time and their places 
filled by the annual meetings.

I think great confusion would result if this question of a 
certificate is allowed to defeat the appointments. In 26 Am- 
& Eng. Encyc. of Law. page 689, it is said : “ Statutory pre" 
scriptions in regard to the time, form and mode of proceeding 
bv public functionaries are generally directory, as they arc 
not of the essence of the thing to be done, but are given 
simply with a view to secure system, uniformity and despatch 
in the conduct of business.” I refer to R. v. Tofthouse, I* 
R. 1 (). B. 433; Caldow v. l’ixell, 2 ('. P. I). 562; R. v. Ingall- 
2 Q. B. D. 199; Morgan v. Parry. 17 C. B. 334.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.

Rvssei.l, J. :—An annual meeting was duly called of t e 
ratepayers and poll taxpayers of School Section No. 5. 
deck Forks, for the purpose, among other things, of electing
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school trustees. The ratepayers alone would be qualified to 
vote in the election of a chairman, and when the meeting 
proceeded to organize it was found to he nearly, if not quite, 
evenly divided. The consequence was that two persons 
claimed to be elected. One of these seems to have stood on 
the chair for at least part of the time, while the other stood 
behind the chair, and both endeavoured to act as chairman 
of the meeting. Confusion reigned for the space of an hour 
or thereabout when a motion to adjourn was made and put 
to the meeting by one of the persons claiming to be chair­
man, and was declared carried, whereupon the ratepayers 
who had voted for him, about half of those present, retired 
from the meeting and those remaining proceeded to elect 
trustees. The first question that presents itself is—irrespec­
tively of the question whether the chairman who put the 
motion to adjourn and declared it carried was duly elected 
or not—whether it can be said that the meeting so assembled 
failed to elect trustees within the meaning of section 37, so 
that the District Board could proceed under the provisions 
°f that section to appoint trustees. The appellants claim 
that within the meaning of section 28 of chapter 52 the 
annual meeting was not held and that the consequence was, 
not that the District Board could appoint trustees, but that 
a special meeting should have been called as provided in 
section 28. In the alternative they claim that the chair­
man who put the motion to adjourn was not duly elected 
chairman, and that there was no valid adjournment at the 
stage at which the adjournment was declared carried, and 
the ratepayers remaining could proceed with the business of 
the meeting as they did and elect trustees. I think that 
there was a meeting held and that it failed to elect trustees, 
ft may be that it was so evenly divided in voting strength 
that there was not a majority even to elect a chairman, so 
t,lat it broke up without effectively transacting any business 
at all. But it would not follow from this that there had 
l>een no meeting. There must lie a meeting before there can 
be a chairman selected. It is the meeting that selects the 
chairman when one is selected. And many meetings take 
f'ace and do business without any chairman ever being 
,,b"sen. Suppose that the meeting had proceeded to select a 
''•'airman by ballot and an equal number of ballots had been 
^Posited for each of two candidates. Neither could claim 
to be the chairman, and the meeting might in such a case
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disperse without transacting any business. I think that in 
such a case it could not be said that a meeting had not been 
“held at the time fixed by the chapter” (sec. 28). and that 
it could be said that the meeting “ had failed to elect three 
trustees ” (sec. 37).

When votes were taken at the meeting for chairman there 
appeared to be seventeen for the chairman Watson, who put 
the vote to adjourn and declared it carried, and twenty for 
the other chairman Anderson, who with his party remained 
after the adjournment and proceeded with the business of 
electing trustees. It is not disputed that there was one poll 
taxpayer in Watson’s poll and three in Anderson’s. These 
votes being struck off would leave Watson with sixteen votes 
and Anderson with seventeen. The appellant seeks to strike 
off McPhee from Watson’s poll and the respondent to strike 
off Morrison and McDonald from the Anderson poll. The 
learned trial Judge has found that McPhee was qualified 
and that Morrison and McDonald were not, which leaves the 
vote sixteen for Watson and fifteen for Anderson. He there­
fore held that Watson was duly elected chairman, and that 
the adjournment was duly carried before any trustees were 
elected. The question as to the qualification of Morrison 
and McDonald depends upon the question whether they were 
or were not in the school section No. 5, Baddeck Forks. 
This section was newly constituted by taking into it a part 
of another section. In fact, there was a re-arrangement of 
a number of sections, but for the purposes of the present 
question it is sufficient to say that a number of ratepayers 
were taken from what was called Mill Brook Section, some 
of whom were to be put in the “ Forks Section,” so called 
in the resolution for division, more fully described as school 
section No. 5. Baddeck Forks, and the rest put into a section 
to the northward. In defining the division line the follow­
ing terms were used : “ that Mill Brook section he divided a5 
follows, viz., all north of the brook to be joined to centre 

section No. 8, and those south of the brook, viz., Alexander 
McKay and Charles McPhee, be joined to Forks section- 
The appellant contends that Morrison and McDonald were
south of the brook and must, therefore, be counted in the 
Forks section, and he asks us to examine the mass of testi­
mony for the purpose of determining as a matter of fact that 
Morrison and McDonald were resident south of the brook-
think we must take the resolution of the commissioners who
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divided the section as it stands and understand it in the 
sense which they meant it to bear so far as can be collected 
from its terms. I think nothing can be clearer than that 
they understood and meant it to be understood by all con­
cerned that the only ratepayers they were adding to the 
Forks section from the Mill Brook section by that resolution 
were Alexander Macaulay and Charles McPhee. If it were 
necessary to determine the question whether Morrison and 
McDonald are in fact on the north or the south side of the 
brook there is no satisfactory evidence before us on this 
point. There are no plans except sketches drawn by wit­
nesses. from memory or imagination, and even copies of 
these have not been furnished. Most of the evidence of the 
witnesses is unintelligible without these sketches, and some 
of it would, I am confident, be unintelligible with them. 
M itnesses speak from their impressions as to the points of 
the compass relatively to known objects on the land and 
differ materially from one another in this respect. Dr. 
Rethune, one of the commissioners, says that Morrison- and 
McDonald are north of the brook, or rather that no others 
are south of the brook except Macaulay and McPhee. and 
even they are not in his opinion south of the brook. The 
hroof itself runs north and south, in his judgment, but if it is. 
and there is some evidence that it is a very winding sort of a 
brook, it may well be that although McPhee and Macaulay 
are on the same side as McDonald and Morrison, the lattci 
may be north and the fonner south in the sense in which 
the commissioners must have understood the terms. Sheriff 
McKay savs that McDonald and Morrison are south of the 
brook, but he admits that two might be on the same 
side of the brook and still one might be to the north of it 
and the other to the south, because of the brook being, as lie 
Ravs it is. very crooked. Alexander Anderson says the same 
a< McKay as to these two men being south of the brook. 
pxeept that as he explains lie would not call it exactly south. 
Ominously enough Daniel Morrison, one of the ratepàvers 
wlmse vote was objected to because he was not on the south 
Ride of the brook, admits that it is possible that his house 
'* north of the brook as the brook runs by it. but lie is con­
victed through a long examination about the location of a 

’ri‘lge relative to certain points spoken of as " X and 
wbi°h I could not follow at the argument for want of a plan 
nr’d do not now pmf. -s to be able to understand, there is
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rebuttal evidence to shew that Morrison and McDonald are 
north of the brook and thus out of the school section on any 
reading of the resolution. The learned trial Judge has 
found that they were not resident in the school section and 
I think one should not under the kind of evidence offered 
reverse his finding.

I cannot feel so clear as to the finding that the young 
man McPhee who voted was in fact a ratepayer. He owned 
^property, and paid rates, it is true, but I am not sure that 
he was assessed. The assessor says that it was the old man 
that he assessed and there is some circumstantial evidence 
that the young man who voted considered that it was the old 
man who was being assessed, though the evidence to that 
effect is not conclusive. On his cross-examination the as­
sessor admits that as far as the McPhee property went it 
was only McPhee junior that he ever had anything to do 
with. There is an assessment of stock and the only Charles 
McPhee that owned stock was the young man. On the whole, 
therefore, I do not think that there is sufficient evidence to 
warrant us in reversing the finding on this point of the 
learned Judge.

I should like very much, in view of the interests at stake 
and the confusion likely to ensue from a reversal of the 
judgment of the trial Judge, to be able to agree with him as 
to the sufficiency of the certificate, and I cannot disguise from 
myself that I have endeavoured to persuade myself to concur 
on this point. But I cannot bring myself to think that the 
statute has in this respect been complied with. As a con­
dition precedent to the appointment of trustees by the dis­
trict board there must be a written requisition of five rate­
payers, accompanied by a certificate from the inspector that 
to the best of his knowledge and belief, founded on an in­
spection of the minutes of the school meeting or of the copy 
forwarded to him by the trustees, or if necessary on personal 
inquiry, that the alleged vacancy or vacancies actually exist- 
There was no certificate accompanying the requisition, but 
the inspector gave a statement to the district board to the 
effect that from the information received bv him by minutes 
of meeting he was not satisfied that trustees had been elected.

Assuming even that the personal presence and oral state­
ment of the inspector supplied the want of the certificate, 
which I think must have been intended to lie a writing a°' 
companving the requisition, there is not in this oral com-
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nmnication of the inspector any expression of a positive be­
lief that trustees had not been elected, or that vacancies 
existed. If he was in fact unable to certify to a belief that 
trustees had not been elected, and that therefore vacancies 
existed, or even if he really believed it to be probable that 
they had been elected, he might still truthfully use this form 
of words, meaning to say merely that he was not perfectly 
certain that trustees had been elected. I think the statute 
contemplates a positive statement of belief put in writing ac­
companying the requisition, and it may well be that this was 
the very condition which the inspector felt himself unable 
to comply with.

I am also unable to regard the provisions requiring the 
certificate of the inspector as merely directory. I fear a 
decision to that effect would enable the district board in 
some cases to successfully overrule the vote of the annual 
Meeting. Suppose the board should undertake to do this 
where there had been a perfectly valid election and the right 
of the nominees of the board were challenged by quo 
warranto proceedings. The very first contention that would 
be made on behalf of the relator would be that there had 
been no certificate by the inspector. XX ould it be competent 

set up against this the contention that the provision « a* 
merely directory? I think not, and yet I am not able to say 
"by the contention could not be just as admissible in the 
case supposed as in the present case. I do not profess to be 
able to draw the distinction between what is directory and 
ybat is imperative, and I find that I am not alone in suspect- 
ln8 that under the authorities a provision may become direct- 
',r.v if it is very desirable that compliance with it should not 
bave been omitted when that same provision would have been 
beld to he imperative if the necessity had not arisen for the 
'‘Pposite ruling.

The temptation is very great where the consequences <>1 
1,,|(ling a statute to lx* imperative are seriously inconvemen .

s,rnin a point in favour of the contention that it i~ m< " 
'■'rectory, and I notice that Hardcastle quotes Mr. hedge- 
Wlck to the effect that “ the practice of correcting the eva- 
"*°n or disregard of statutes by treating them as merely 

■rectory has been carried Iwvond the line of sound discre- 
,l0n” in this case the effect of the certificate in question 
,"nv be to take the election of trustees away from the rati - 
***** »t large „,„i place it in the hands of a nominated
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body. I think that before the power conferred upon such 
a body is exercised the conditions precedent to its exercise 
must exist, and one of these is a certificate as to the affirma­
tive belief of the inspector that a vacancy exists.

It remains to consider whether, even so, the Court is 
bound to give a judgment of ouster. I find in the American 
and English Encyclopedia a statement that the interests of 
the public and innocent parties may be considered, and 
where the proceeding would result in injury or inconvenience 
without any corresponding benefit and no private right of a 
relator is involved leave may properly be refused. Of course 
ir. this case leave was not refused to issue the writ, but the 
same authorities add that “ where leave is improvidentlv 
granted the Court may, upon the hearing, refuse relief upon 
the same ground for which it might have refused leave to 
file the information;” 23 Am. & Eng. Ency. 604, 605.

If the Court when it was asked for leave to allow the 
writ had known that the trustees claiming to have been 
elected had been elected after a motion to adjourn had been 
carried by the majority of duly qualified ratepayers, and 
when what began as a meeting had become a mob, I do not 
think that the writ would have been allowed, and I think 
that the Court can under these circumstances properly 
refuse to proceed to judgment under the very especial cir­
cumstances of this case. Those circumstances are that there 
are no persons, other than those whose title is attacked. wh° 
can claim to have been elected, that there can be no machin­
ery by means of which any persons, other than these de fa to 
trustees, could have been elected, that the inspectors ougbt 
the technical requirements of the statute have not been com­
plied with, the same result has been reached as if those re 
qvirements had been complied with to the letter. I therefore 
think that the appeal from the judgment of the trial dodge 
should lie dismissed with costs, but I also think that t 
defendants having failed to establish their legal title to t 
office should not have the costs of the trial.

Meagher. J.. was of the opinion that the certificat 
must be in writing and was a pre-requisite.

Appeal dismissed with costs.
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BOUDROT v. MORRISON.

Lund—Action for Recovery—Sale—Deed—Consideration — 

Adverse Possession—Husband and Wife—Agency.

A. D. Gunn, for plaintiff.
G. W. Kyte, K.C., for defendant.

Meagher, J. :—This is an action to recover a piece of 
'and of about five acres.

The plaintiff's title is founded on a deed from Justin 
B'»na to his son Albert, dated May 12th, 1900: registered 
June 19th following, and a deed from Albert to the plaintiff 
dated December, 1903, registered the next February. The 
Matter purchase was made a vear or so before the deed and 
part of the price paid and possession obtained thereunder.

Justin Bona and Albert have been dead several years. 
1 he elder died first.

I here is a denial of the plaintiff's title and right to pos- 
St‘Ksion—and a freehold and possession and right of posses- 
S|°n in defendant, are averred.

I here is a special defence, limited to two acres averred 
to have been enclosed &c., by Justin Bona, but no descrip- 
fion thereof is given founded upon an alleged purchase 
thereof made (it is averred while defendant was in posscs- 
sion> with plaintiff's agent in March. 1906, for $20, half 
1 ,lsh and half in labour as she required the latter, and of 
"hieh lie paid $5 in cash and did some work, ami further, 
‘hat in November, 1906, the plaintiff's agent requested the 
' 'Tendant to procure from one Sampson a piece of land ad- 
j0l,ling that on which she resided, for which defendant was 
l" pay and the price was agreed to be credited to defendant 

®Uch purchase, and to that extent was accepted in lieu 
'* ’he labor and • to be paid under the first purchase

1,1,1 he arranged for the purchase with Sampson, and noti- 
le< her agent that Sampson was ready and willing to mca- 
,U'e 8u<li lot whenever her agent desired to select it. but lie 
refu®ed to „V(,.|lt it.

*et- ■ t.e. wo. it-is

ZZ
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There is a material difference between the defence thus 
pleaded and the defendant’s story. There is no description 
given and none was agreed upon as to the limits, area, or 
value, or the price of the Sampson lot, and not a word about 
its even having been selected—or agreed upon—though the 
defendant in his evidence sought to make it apj>ear that it 
was selected. If the fact were so defendant would have 
pleaded it.

There is no counterclaim for specific performance and it 
could not be decreed even if a case were made out.

Justin Bona occupied and used the entire lot for at least 
forty years; his house was towards the rear, and it was 
fenced on each side down into the pond as far as it could be 
built. The greater part beyond that was swamp and beach 
and road, but even in that area there was a cultivated field. 
Fences could not have been maintained across the beach and 
the water served as a fence in front. It seems unlikely he 
would use the rear and not the front of his property over which 
he went in his almost daily occupation of a fisherman. The 
two side fentes extending to the front as far as they could 
he carried indicated to his neighbour, Donald McDonald, the 
extent of his occupation. In this respect it is not unlike the 
case of Moore v. Jameson. T think it was an eastern passage, 
a Cole Harbor controversy, decided some years ago where 
an island was held to be in possession of the occupier to the 
rear, though merely connected by a causeway ; animals were 
occasionally pastured upon it.

Albert Bona had possession under color of title at least 
for two years or so. and plaintiff has had possession under 
her deed ever since she got it except in so far as her posses­
sion was intruded upon by the defendant.

Donald Mcl)onald at one time ownisl the locus as part 
two bund ml acres. In 18fi!> he conveyed the whole area t° 
John McDonald, and the latter in May, 1884. reconveved •" 
Donald by the same description. In May. 1000 Donald con 
veved it to the defendant, excepting thereout a lot 
vexed to one Bissett, but no proof was given where thp 
Bissett lot was. nor of its size. That deed contained tb'“ 

exception as to the locus ; “ As also any jiortion of the a bn'" 
granted land and premises as up to the date of this in®*r‘ 
ment miy, or have been enclosed and fenced and iinpr°u 
by Justin Bona This deed was subsequent to that fr? 
Justin Bona to Albert, and u|s>n which plaintiff’s title re*
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During John’s ownership lie purports to have conveyed to 
Simon Bona, son of Justin, then living with his father, by 
deed dated April 2nd, 1875, but not recorded until June, 
1899, a lot corresponding in some respects with the two 
acres. The deed did not mention any quantity, and there 
>s no proof of the blazed line mentioned in it nor that it was 
aver made. In April last Simon Bona, after this dispute 
arose, and after proceedings were threatened against the 
defendant, and after he had admitted the plaintiff’s title 
to the whole area, and which lie had recognized as he admits 
to 1906, gave the defendant a deed which purported to convey 
the same lot as in the deed to him, but made no reference 
to the blazed line, and fixed the area at two acres. It con­
tins all usual covenants. Simon, since 1879, resided on 
'I ad ai n Island, and miles away from the locus. I do not lie- 
heve he ever went into possession under his deed, not to the 
exclusion or disturbance of his father’s possession at any 
rate, and never exercising any control over it. He never as- 
soited a claim to it for upwards of thirty years and never 
"ould have been heard of in connection with it; if he had not 
)een sought out by the defendant in his endeavour to defeat 

16 plaintiff’s title, I am confident Simon never believed he 
lay an.v claim or title in his own right. It is strange if he 

l’ai,l the money to Donald McDonald, as he says, that McDon- 
a '* " deed to defendant did not except the property so con- 
'e)’ed by special reference to that fact. It matters not whether 

Il|ion at one time had title or not—if he had it was defeated 
1 °og adverse possession, and therefore it does not assist 

e détendant in the least. It is somewhat singular too that 
' len John reconveyed to Donald McDonald he made no ex- 
t'ption of the lot described in Simon’s deed. If he believed 

l^at ’t formed part of the property, and he had conveyed it,
■ Wo"ld have excepted it out of his reconveyance. I did not 

u,ve Simon’s evidence as to the circumstances surrounding 
le deed to him. He showed a partisan spirit, and a strong 
*81re to uphold the deed he gave the defendant without 
Uch reference to the truth. McDonald, the defendant 

_ antor, did not believe he owned any part of the locus; so 
'* clear from the evidence some time before the agree- 

,j^nt to purchase from Alliert Bona; the plaintiff’s husband 
!,;;;**! purchase with the old man Bona. He saw Donald 
tli,. < nn^ on the subject of ownership and enquired who was 

"glitful owner of it, and was told by McDonald that
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Justin Bona was, that he had bought it from him and paid 
him for it. That was years before the defendant bought 
from McDonald.

Fitzgerald, a disinterested party, and an intelligent and 
fair witness, testified that McDonald recognised Bona’s right 
to the control of the beach in front twenty-five years ago, 
while the evidence of Alexander Sampson, a reliable party, 
conclusively shows that McDonald recognised Justin Bona’s 
ti,tle to the whole five acres in 1900. This in my judgment 
estopped himself at any rate from ever asserting title in 
himself against Albert Bona, and perhaps also against any 
one claiming under him as well. Sampson’s interview was 
quite a while before defendant’s deed to Sampson; upon that 
occasion the draft of the deed in evidence was from Bona 
to Albert to McDonald, including the description which 
embraced the whole five acres, and McDonald said the deed 
was all right, and that Justin Bona had paid him honestly 
for it, and that he was advised, a deed from Justin was as 
good as one from himself. He said this apparently because 
of his recognition of Bona's title, founded, it may be, on 
Bona’s possession and payment. Therefore Bona’s convey­
ance would be good, even although he received no convey­
ance from him. Be this as it may Ik*, he distinctly recognised 
Bona’s title and power to convey it on that occasion.

I have not investigated the question how far McDonald s 
statements thus made, while he was out of possession, and 
another one in, affected the defendant, and therefore do not 
decide it. It is not necessary I should ; but if he is bound- 
then he is without title to any part unless through Simon 
Bona. I have disposed of that already.

There is no pretence by the pleadings or otherwise tha1 
defendant was a lama fide purchaser for value without noth'*’- 
The facts would not permit it. The exception in his 11 w" 
deed, apart from all else, put him upon enquiry. His d«* 
gave him no title" to any part which any time was enclose* • 
Ac., by old man Bona, and one would think, in view of tha • 
he should have negatived the fact that Bona had ever *n 
closed, Ac. any part of that which he claims in order to *’’|^ 
down the plaintiff’s title. I do not lay any stress on B" 
view.

The papers M/4 and M/5 cannot he regarded as e 
ilence in any view. They were subsequent to the deeds fr° ^ 
John to Donald and from the latter to the defendant-
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mention this merely to exclude an inference that I gave effect 
to them in any sense.

It is suggestive that while the special defence up to the 
close of the defendant’s evidence was limited to two acres 
onlv, and as to that depended upon the alleged purchase from 
the plaintiff, yet in all the negotiations he details about 
the alleged purchase he does not say a word about them being 
limited to two acres. It was the Bona property purchased 
from Albert Bona which formed the subject of discussion 
and proposed purchase. His statement giving the conver­
sation on the ice when he says the bargain was first made, 
proves clearly what 1 have just said, and that fact makes his 
story about Bond rot's seeking permission to cut ice on the 
pond all the more improbable. If he had said in explanation 
that he believed the purchase from Albert was limited to 
two acres the position would have been different.

I find as a fact that the plaintiff has and the defendant 
never had any title, to the land sought to be recovered.

The defendant and Bond rot are in conflict in respect to 
Bic alleged purchase on the ice in March, lfiOfi. It is enough 
to sav that burden was on defendant to prove the bargain, 
and the husband's agenev, power to make it. and the ex idencc, 
as I give credit to the witnesses, falls a long way short ol 
satisfying me on either point. I say this independent!) of 
any question of burden of proof and because 1 do not believe 
Rueh a bargain was made.

I lie evidence of the plaintiff, who was called bv the de­
fendant, in one as]>cct shows agency in her husband to mak< 
at bargain touching the land, but not in the sense required to 
a'‘l the defendant. She is very pointed and specific in hoi 
•iatenient, however, in the denial of an agency to sell or re-
eeiv,. 

I
money on the property.

1 pass l>v the question as to whose money was paid to 
,"n« for the property. St. Charles Andrea. 41 N. S. Ü»» 
f,ll|.v disposes of it If Bond rot choose to pay for the land 
and have a deed made to his wife defendant cannot question 
'*• With respect to the alleged agreement to exchange any 

la* w»s ever made was made so the plaintiff, her uis >an 
"nd defendant sav, in 190,1. The husband says that it was 
<’nlv an "fTer, that he told the defendant if he would buy him 

1Vv «ores of land he would make an exchange. Hie defeml- 
1,1,1 •• silent as to that. Bond rot also said that nothing was 

»t any time about value or about a sum of money m
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exchange, and h is wife said referring to the arrangement 
spoken of in 1903, that defendant was to have the piece mea­
sured they were to get and have the deed made to lier, neither 
of which he did : and it never was located, defined, or 
bargained for by the defendant. This probably was the 
arrangement she referred to when talking with McNeil.

The defendant's first entry was upon Albert Bonn's pos­
session, and was in fact a trespass, and his conduct shows he 
so regarded it.

The same is true of his entry upon plaintiffs possession, 
beginning with 1903, and ending with 190.1; he cut the hay 
upon the halves and gave the plaintiff half, or an equivalent. 
His possession so far as lie had any was referable thereto. 
He avers in his pleadings that he was in possession when the 
alleged bargain was made in March, 1906. Whether this is 
so or not he was never given possession, nor did he obtain 
it, in part performance of any contract or bargain bv way 
of sale or exchange, for the whole or any part of the locus.

Notwithstanding that before the haying season of 1903 
he asked Bond rot if he had bought the Bona property, and 
was told he had, and then asked him if he would sell it, yet 
when the haying season arrived he went on as he had done 
in Bonn’s time without leave and cut the hay, which was a 
pretty high-handed trespass. When Boudrot found him cut­
ting the hay they had an altercation which ended in defend­
ant making the hay on the halves, and that by tacit conseil* 
continued for years afterwards.

tn fTPt tIn* hi‘tt<«r iif liia mftW'ipnpB-

I nil* nwuviiiriii ti* it» ine* unit? ill million 10 mr it-** ~

'
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at which the agreement was made is not consistent—but it 
is of little moment.

As to the alleged variation made the following November 
even if I accepted his statement of it. it does not shew a 
definite nor a concluded bargain in any particular; certainly 
not one definite enough to be enforced. If. as I find, there 
was not an earlier bargain, then the later one bv itself is of 
no moment, even if fullv proved, which it was not. Speaking 
°f that affair the defendant said, in reference to what was 
to be acquired from Sampson. “ We couldn t tell what it 
would cost. . . I wouldn’t have it at all if it cost more 
than $5. I never bought it from Sampson. That was the 
first step and he never took it.

As to the alleged payment of $5 in 1008, T need noi 
sav mu eh. There was no bargain in existence to which it 
could be applied, while there was an undoubted liability on 
i'is part to give hav or its equivalent.

Mrs. Morrison didn’t hear all the conversation on that 
occasion. She says she heard most of it. but it is impossible 
s1)c should have. It extended over four hours, and mean­
while she was about her household work. But although 
admittedly she didn’t hear it all. vet she was willing to swear 
she heard all that was said about the Bona field, and that.
T think, was far too much for any careful witness to say.

Tt is equally impossible to believe the elex on-year-old 
k'rl. who was running about the house and in and out of it. 
"hile Roudrot was there, heard it all. She did not pav much 
"ttention to it. and it would not be expected she did. She 
cdinits franklv what her mother hedged about it. that j">t 
before her father went upstairs and got the money he and 
"'nidmt were talking about hav. thus to this extent eor- 
rnWnting Roudrot. Unless schooled in the matter it is not 
"! n" likelv she would have remembered with so much pre- 
°ls'on what was said when the money was paid It is quite 
Jïnbablo. too. the witnesses, mother and daughter, max not 

1:1 vp «aught the import of the words used, which I think 
":rp f«r more likelv to have been to pay for or on account 
" We hay from the Rona field or Rona property, for which 

lPr,‘ "a* n liability—than for or on account of t < 
t'roparty itself for which no liability existed.

* not attach anv importance to the widen- • ,’|r 
0,1 «»«! Dugas „s to the admissions made by Roudrot. He
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was but an agent, and to make such admissions evidence it 
should have been shewn at what particular time they were 
made and that so near to the period of agency and the 
business done as to bind the plaintiff.

Neither has been shewn. Nicholson, a very dull, stupid 
sort of witness, placed his conversation in April following the 
severe winter recently experienced. The heavy winter was in 
1Ü05, a year before the alleged bargain was made. Conse­
quently Boudrot could not then have truthfully said what he 
imputes to him.

With respect to any expenditures made by defendant he 
had no right to make any, and was a trespasser in making 
them, and has no claim to be allowed for them. Moreover, 
if his contention in one respect is allowed that he owned the 
pond and south of it, the bulk of them were made in or out­
side of the pond and in this view upon his own land.

Regarding the facts as I do and giving credit to such of 
the witnesses as I deemed reliable and discrediting those 
whom I regarded otherwise. I feel obliged to find the facts 
in the plaintiff's favour, and to award judgment with costs 
accordingly.

1 should, perhaps, add that Boudrot and defendant "ere 
in conflict as to the reason why some work was done by the 
defendant. One says it was under the bargain. The other 
says it was not.

It was argued that because the plaintiff did not seek ha) 
in 11)0(5-7-8 (she did in 1008). it corroborated the fact of !l 
sale, but if there was a sale in 19015 she was equally negligent 
in seeking the cash payment thereon. The argument l,a? 
no force.


